
 
 
 

Pensions Committee 
 
Date: Monday, 16 September 2013 
Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Pat Phillips 
Tel: 0151 691 8488 
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non pecuniary interests, in connection with any item(s) 
on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 24 

June, 2013. 
 

3. GRANT  THORNTON - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT (Pages 9 
- 28) 

 
4. DRAFT  ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 29 - 32) 
 
5. FUND ACCOUNTS 2012/13 (Pages 33 - 36) 
 
6. LGPS UPDATE (Pages 37 - 66) 
 
7. FUTURE STRUCTURE OF THE LGPS (Pages 67 - 78) 
 
8. TACTICAL ASSET  ALLOCATION (Pages 79 - 82) 
 
9. IT COSTS 2014 REFORM (Pages 83 - 86) 
 
10. ANNUAL EMPLOYERS CONFERENCE (Pages 87 - 90) 
 

Public Document Pack



11. LGPS FUNDAMENTALS TRAINING (Pages 91 - 98) 
 
12. LAPFF CONFERENCE (Pages 99 - 102) 
 
13. INFRASTRUCTURE & PRIVATE EQUITY SEMINAR (Pages 103 - 

106) 
 
14. NAPF CONFERENCE (Pages 107 - 130) 
 
15. AMEY SERVICES (Pages 131 - 134) 
 
16. TUNSGATE SQUARE TENDER (Pages 135 - 138) 
 
17. GRWP MINUTES 18 JULY 2013 (Pages 139 - 142) 
 
18. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The following items contain exempt information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 
 

19. TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION EXEMPT APPENDICES (Pages 
143 - 164) 

 
20. IT COSTS 2014 REFORM EXEMPT APPENDIX (Pages 165 - 166) 
 
21. AMEY SERVICES EXEMPT APPENDIX (Pages 167 - 168) 
 
22. TUNSGATE SQUARE TENDER EXEMPT  APPENDIX (Pages 169 - 

172) 
 
23. GRWP MINUTES EXEMPT APPENDIX (Pages 173 - 180) 
 
24. IMWP MINUTES 11 SEPTEMBER 2013 EXEMPT APPENDIX  
 
 Minutes to follow. 

 
25. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 24 June 2013 
 

Present: Councillor AR McLachlan (Vice-Chair) 
 
 Councillors G Watt 

G Davies 
S Hodrien 
 

H Smith 
M Hornby 
C Povall 
 

 Councillors N Keats, Knowsley Council 
J Fulham, St Helens Council 
 

In attendance:  P Goodwin (Unison) 
 

Apologies Councillors P Glasman 
T Harney 
A Jones 
P Tweed 
P Hurley 
 
Mr P Wiggins (Unison) 
Mr P McCarthy 

 
 

1 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were asked whether they had any pecuniary or non pecuniary interests in 
connection with any application on the agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 
Councillor Norman Keats declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of being a member 
of Merseyside Pension Fund. 
 
Councillor Geoffrey Watt declared a pecuniary interest by virtue of a relative being a 
member of Merseyside Pension Fund. 
 

2 MINUTES  
 
The Strategic Director Transformation and Resources submitted the minutes of the 
meeting held on 25 March 2013. 
 
Resolved – That the minutes be received. 
 

3 PAUL WIGGINS  
 
The Chair informed the Committee of a number of apologies for this meeting 
including that of Paul Wiggins, UNISON representative who had recently had a 
period of ill health requiring a stay in hospital. The Chair was pleased to inform 
members that he was now on the road to good health and offered the Committee’s 
best wishes for a speedy recovery. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
Resolved – That members of the Pensions Committee send their good wishes 
to Paul Wiggins for a speedy recovery. 
 

4 ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
The Chair agreed to vary the order of business. 
 

5 MERSEYSIDE PENSION FUND - EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2012-13.  
 
The Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources submitted the Audit Plan for 
Merseyside Pension Fund. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

6 LGPS UPDATE  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources updated 
Members on the technical responses from MPF to the second round of Statutory 
Consultations in regard to the new LGPS from 1 April 2014. 
 
In addition, the report summarised the draft Miscellaneous Amendments Regulations 
2013 in relation to the current Scheme and also gave an overview of the intended 
national communication strategy to promote understanding of the new Scheme.   
 
It further covered the enactment of the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and MPF’s 
response to the recent DWP consultation on Automatic Enrolment simplification. 
 
MPF submission dated 3 May 2013 to DCLG Consultation on Draft LGPS 2013 
Regulations, MPF submission dated 24 May 2013 to DCLG Consultation on Draft 
Transitional Provisions and Draft Miscellaneous Amendment Regulations 2013 and 
MPF submission dated 3 May 2013 to DWP Consultation on Technical Changes To 
Automatic Enrolment were included as appendices to the report. 
 
Yvonne Caddock, Principal Pensions Officer, outlined the key issues of the report 
and responded to members comments. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

7 ANNUAL INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources set out the 
investment performance of Merseyside Pension Fund for the year ended March 2013 
as calculated by the WM Company. 

 
Resolved – That  

 
1 the report be noted. 
2 the officers be congratulated on the success of the Fund. 
 

8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT  
 

Page 2



A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources presented a 
review of treasury management activities within Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) for 
the 2012/13 financial year and reported any circumstances of non-compliance with 
the treasury management strategy and treasury management practices.  It had been 
prepared in accordance with the revised CIPFA Treasury Management Code. 
 
Peter Wallach, Head of Merseyside Pension Fund, outlined the key issues of the 
report and responded to members questions. 
 
Resolved – That the Treasury Management Annual Report for 2012/13 be noted. 
 

9 BUDGET FINANCIAL YEAR 2013/2014, BUDGET OUT TURN 2012/13 AND 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012/13.  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources requested that 
Members note and approve: 
 

• The finalised budget for the financial year 2013/14. 
• The out-turn for the financial year 2012/13. 
• The 3 year budget for MPF as required for the annual report 

 
It was reported that there were no significant changes from the original report in 
January in terms of the out-turn for 2012/13 and for the budget for 2013/14.  The 
budget for 2013/14 including the out-turn for 2012/13 and the original appendix as 
reported to Members on 15th January 2013 were included as appendices to the 
report for information. 
 
Resolved – That 
 
1 the finalised budget for 2013/14 with revised estimates for departmental 

& central support charges for 2013/14 and finalised salary costs be 
approved. 

 
2 the 2012/13 Annual Report including 3 year financial estimates be 
approved. 
 
3 the out turn for 2012/13 be noted.  
 

10 LGC INVESTMENT SUMMIT  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources requested 
nominations to attend the LGC Investment Summit to be held in Newport, South 
Wales from 5-6 September 2013. 
 
Resolved – That attendance at the conference be approved in principle in the 
ratio 1:1:1. 
 

11 PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY STATEMENT  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources informed the 
Pension Committee of the required update to the Pensions Administration Strategy 

Page 3



Statement, to reflect recent procedural changes resulting from the introduction of new 
legislation. 
 
A copy of the Pensions Administration Strategy 2013 was attached as an appendix to 
the report for information. 
 
Resolved - That the amendments to the Pensions Administration Strategy 
Statement attached as appendix 1 to the report be approved. 
 

12 OFFICIAL OPENING OF GWYNEDD AD PLANT.  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources sought approval 
for the Chair of Pensions Committee to attend the official opening of the Gwynedd 
Anaerobic Digestion Plant on 2 July 2013. 
 
It was reported that MPF was currently the sole investor in the fund which had 
successfully won three tenders, two of which were in Wales.  Construction of the first 
plant, “Prosiect GwyriAD” is completing.  The facility would treat 11,000 tonnes of 
food waste from local households and businesses, all of which could otherwise be 
sent to landfill.  The plant was fully licensed and regulated by the Environment 
Agency and would generate 3,500 MWh per annum of renewable electricity and a 
biofertiliser for use on local farmland.  It was the first AD plant to be commissioned by 
the Welsh Assembly and be completed.  In recognition of this, a formal opening 
ceremony had been organised by Gwynedd Council and, as funder of the project, 
MPF had been invited. 
 
Resolved – That attendance at this ceremony of the Chair of the Pensions 
Committee and the Head of the Pensions Fund be agreed. 
 

13 COMPLIANCE MANUAL - SECTION 6 PERSONAL CONDUCT ARRANGEMENTS.  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources sought the 
Committees approval of a revised Compliance Manual Section 6, Personal Conduct 
Arrangements. 
 
A copy of the Compliance Manual Section 6 Personal Conduct Arrangements was 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Resolved - That the revised Section 6, Personal Conduct Arrangements of the 
Compliance Manual be approved. 
 

14 TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources requested that 
the Pensions Committee approve a framework for active management of medium 
term asset allocation. 
 
Appendix 2 to the report contained exempt information. This is by virtue of 
paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information). 
 

Page 4



Aon Hewitt attended the meeting and presented a report on the Principles of MTAA 
and the proposals for implementation. An earlier version of this report had been 
presented to members at the meeting of the IMWP on 12 March 2013. Members 
questions were invited and responded to. 
 
Resolved – That 
 
1 a framework for active management of medium term asset allocation 

including the following key aspects be approved: 
 
• the setting up of a MTTA panel as outlined in the appendix. 
 
• the appointment of an overlay manager subject to completion of due 

diligence work by Aon Hewitt (This would be delegated to officers and 
reported to Committee in September). 

 
• the provision of additional services from Aon Hewitt as MTAA advisors 

under their existing contract. 
 
2 subject to approval, the Compliance Manual would be amended to 

reflect the MTAA framework. 
 
3 the additional consultancy fees paid to Aon Hewitt for conducting due 

diligence on the recommended arrangements be noted. 
 

15 TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources requested that 
Members note the outcome of the recent tendering exercise in respect of a 
replacement patio roof at the Tunsgare shopping centre in Guildford. 
 
The appendix to the report (report from CBRE on the tender process) contained 
exempt information. This was by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 
Resolved – That the acceptance of the most economically advantageous 
tender by the Interim Director of Resources be noted. 
 

16 IMWP MINUTES  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources provided 
Members with the minutes of the Investment Monitoring Working Parties (IMWP) held 
on 10 April and 12 June 2013. 
 
The appendices to the report, the minutes of the IMWP’s on 10 April and 12 June 
2013, contained exempt information. This was by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 

Page 5



Resolved – That the minutes of the IMWP’s which were attached as an exempt 
appendix to this report be approved. 
 

17 CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT.  
 
A report of Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources requested that 
Members note the outcome of the recent tendering exercise in respect of refurbishing 
two offices on the 4th floor of Castle Chambers. 
 
The appendix to the report (report from CBRE on the tender process) contained 
exempt information. This was by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 
 
Resolved - That acceptance of the lowest cost tender by the Interim Director of 

Resources be noted. 
 

18 ESSENTIALS TRAINING FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY PENSION SCHEMES.  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources informed 
Members of a training opportunity to be held on 10 September 2013 at the 
Monastery, Manchester and asked if Members wish to attend. 
 
Resolved – That  
1 attendance at this event for those Members who wish to avail 

themselves of the opportunity be approved. 
2 the Head of Merseyside Pension Fund circulate details and dates of the 

training to members of the Pension Committee. 
 

19 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
Resolved – That in accordance with section 100 (A) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business, on the grounds that involves the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined by relevant paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A (as amended) to that Act. The public interest test had been applied and 
favoured exclusion. 
 

20 TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION EXEMPT APPENDIX.  
 
The appendix to the report on Tactical Asset Allocation (Minute 14 refers) was 
exempt by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

21 TUNSGATE SQUARE - ROOFING TENDER EXEMPT APPENDIX.  
 
The appendix to the report on Tunsgate Square – Roofing Tender (Minute 15 refers) 
was exempt by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

22 IMWP MINUTES 10/04/13 & 12/06/13.  
 

Page 6



The appendix to the report on IMWP Minutes 10/04/13 & 12/06/13 Tunsgate Square 
– Roofing Tender (Minute 16 refers) was exempt by virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

23 CASTLE CHAMBERS 4TH FLOOR REFURBISHMENT.  
 
The appendix to the report on Castle Chambers (Minute 17 refers) was exempt by 
virtue of paragraph 3. 
 

24 ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 

25 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - GMI CONFERENCE AND UPDATE ON IFRS 
FRAMEWORK  
 
A report of the Strategic Director of Transformation and Resources sought approval 
for the Chair of Pensions Committee to attend the GMI Ratings’ 2013 Public Funds 
Forum – The Future of Corporate Reform in Newport, California. The Head of the 
Pension Fund indicated that the event covered topics that should be relevant and 
useful to Committee and it would be free to attend. 
 
As an appendix to this report, Members were also advised of the potentially 
significant findings of a Counsel’s opinion commissioned by the Local Authority 
Pension Fund Forum in relation to the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) framework.   
 
The issues identified in the opinion raised fundamental concerns about accounting 
practices in recent years, which had had a particularly damaging effect on the 
banking sectors in the UK and Ireland. This in turn raised significant questions about 
the decisions taken by bank directors which, in LAPFF’s view, were based on faulty 
numbers produced under the IFRS framework.  
 
Resolved – That  
 
1 attendance at this prestigious event by the Chair of Pensions 

Committee be approved. 
2 Counsels advice in relation to the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) framework attached as an appendix 
to the report be noted. 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
1

Th
e A

ud
it P

lan
for

 M
ers

eys
ide

 Pe
nsi

on
 Fu

nd

Y
ea

r 
en

d
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3

30
 M

ay
 2

01
3

M
ik

e 
T

h
o

m
as

D
ire

ct
or

T
01

61
 2

14
 6

36
8

E
m

ik
e.

th
om

as
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

H
ea

th
er

 G
re

en
M

an
ag

er
T

01
61

 2
34

 6
38

1
E

he
at

he
r.

gr
ee

n@
uk

.g
t.c

om

C
h

ri
s 

B
la

ke
m

o
re

E
xe

cu
tiv

e
T

01
61

 2
14

 6
39

7
E

ch
ris

.b
la

ke
m

or
e@

uk
.g

t.c
om

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



Th
ec

on
ten

ts
of

thi
sr

ep
ort

rel
ate

on
ly

to
the

ma
tte
rs

wh
ich

hav
ec

om
et

oo
ur

att
ent

ion
,

wh
ich

we
bel

iev
en

eed
to

be
rep

ort
ed

to
you

as
par

to
fo

ur
aud

it
pro

ces
s.

It
is

no
ta

com
pre

hen
siv

er
eco

rd
of

all
the

rel
eva

nt
ma

tte
rs,

wh
ich

ma
yb

es
ub

jec
tt
oc

han
ge,

and
in

par
tic
ula

rw
ec

ann
ot

be
hel

dr
esp

on
sib

let
oy

ou
for

rep
ort

ing
all

of
the

risk
sw

hic
hm

ay
aff

ect
the

Pe
nsi

on
Fu

nd
or

any
we

akn
ess

es
in

you
rin

ter
nal

con
tro

ls.
Th

isr
epo

rth
as

bee
np

rep
are

d
sol

ely
for

you
rb

ene
fit

and
sho

uld
no

tb
eq

uo
ted

in
wh

ole
or

in
par

tw
ith

ou
to

ur
pri

or
wr

itte
n

con
sen

t.W
ed

on
ot

acc
ept

any
res

po
nsi

bil
ity

for
any

los
so

cca
sio

ned
to

any
thi

rd
par

ty
act

ing
,

or
ref

rai
nin

gf
rom

act
ing

on
the

bas
is
of

the
con

ten
to

ft
his

rep
ort

,a
st

his
rep

ort
wa

sn
ot

pre
par

ed
for

,n
or

int
end

ed
for

,an
yo

the
rp

urp
ose

.

Page 10



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
3

Co
nte
nts

Se
ct
io
n

Pa
ge

1.
Un

der
sta

nd
ing

 yo
ur 

bu
sin

ess
4

2.
De

vel
op

me
nts

 re
lev

ant
 to

 yo
ur 

bu
sin

ess
 an

d t
he 

aud
it

5
3.

Ou
r a

ud
it a

pp
roa

ch
6

4.
An

 au
dit

 fo
cus

ed 
on

 ris
ks

7
5.

Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s id

ent
ifie

d
9

6.
Ot

her
 ris

ks 
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

 1
0

7.
Re

sul
ts o

f in
ter

im
 wo

rk
12

8.
Lo

gis
tics

 an
d o

ur 
tea

m
14

9.
Fe

es 
and

 in
dep

end
enc

e
15

10.
Co

mm
un

ica
tio

n o
f a

ud
it m

att
ers

 wi
th 

tho
se 

cha
rge

d w
ith

 go
ver

nan
ce

16
Ap

pe
nd

ic
es

A.
Ac

tio
n p

lan
18

Page 11



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
4

Un
der
sta
nd
ing
 yo
ur 
bu
sin
ess

C
h

al
le

n
g

es
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
1.

 C
h

an
g

e 
in

 c
u

st
o

d
ia

n

�
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

ap
po

in
te

d 
a 

ne
w

 
cu

st
od

ia
n,

 N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

, i
n 

20
12

/1
3.

 A
ll 

ho
ld

in
gs

/r
ec

or
ds

 u
nd

er
 t

he
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 o
f S

ta
te

 
S

tr
ee

t t
ra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
 N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
 in

 y
ea

r.
 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f a

ss
et

s 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 le
ad

 to
 m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
.

2.
 A

X
IS

e
to

 A
lt

ai
r

�
T

he
 p

en
si

on
s 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 A

X
IS

e
is

 b
ei

ng
 u

pg
ra

de
d 

to
 A

lta
ir 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
. 

3.
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
en

t 
o

f 
p

as
si

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
.

•
M

P
F

 h
av

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

a 
pr

ov
id

er
 o

f p
as

si
ve

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

le
ad

 to
 a

 
£1

.4
bn

 m
ov

em
en

t o
f a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 

4.
 C

h
an

g
e 

in
 b

an
k 

�
T

he
 p

en
si

on
 f

un
d 

ha
s 

ch
an

ge
d 

its
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

of
 

ba
nk

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fr
om

 R
B

S
to

 L
lo

yd
s 

 T
S

B
.

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 a
ss

et
s 

be
fo

re
 a

nd
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

ra
ns

fe
r.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

re
ga

rd
 to

 th
e 

cu
st

od
ia

n'
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

pl
an

s,
 a

nd
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o 
as

se
ss

 a
dh

er
en

ce
 t

o 
th

e 
pl

an
s.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 s

ta
te

 
st

re
et

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

ey
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
ol

d 
as

se
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

, a
nd

 t
o 

ga
in

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
ar

e 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

.

�
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 ta

ke
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
om

  
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it.

 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 g

ai
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 

is
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y,

 a
nd

 g
en

er
at

es
 c

or
re

ct
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

he
 d

at
a 

m
ig

ra
tio

n 
fr

om
 A

X
IS

e
to

 A
lta

ir,
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 p
rio

r 
an

d 
po

st
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

re
co

rd
s 

he
ld

 in
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
e.

�
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 ta

ke
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
om

  
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

el
y 

te
st

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

as
se

ts
 w

er
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d,

 a
nd

 th
at

 
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ar

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 
ac

cu
ra

te
 a

t y
ea

r 
en

d.
 

�
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
an

d 
af

te
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f b

an
ks

.

�
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
 R

B
S

to
 

co
nf

irm
 th

at
 b

al
an

ce
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 
Ll

oy
ds

 T
S

B
. 

In 
pla

nn
ing

 ou
r a

ud
it w

e n
eed

 to
 un

der
sta

nd
 th

e c
hal

len
ges

 an
d o

pp
ort

un
itie

s th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 is 
fac

ing
.  W

e s
et o

ut 
a s

um
ma

ry 
of 

ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g b
elo

w.

Page 12



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
5

De
vel
op
me
nts
 re
lev
ant
 to
 yo
ur 
bu
sin
ess
 an
d t
he 
aud

it
In 

pla
nn

ing
 ou

r a
ud

it w
e a

lso
 co

nsi
der

 th
e im

pac
t o

f k
ey 

dev
elo

pm
ent

s in
 th

e s
ect

or 
and

 tak
e a

cco
un

t o
f n

atio
nal

 au
dit

 re
qu

ire
me

nts
 as

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 Co

de 
of 

Au
dit

 Pr
act

ice
 

and
 as

soc
iate

d g
uid

anc
e.

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts

1.
F

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g

•
C

IP
F

A
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 

se
t o

f e
xa

m
pl

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

in
 2

01
3.

 

2.
 L

G
P

S
20

14

•
P

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

ar
ee

r 
av

er
ag

e 
re

-v
al

ue
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 
sc

he
m

e 
(C

A
R

E
) 

fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
14

.

3.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

–
sc

h
ed

u
le

d
 

an
d

 a
d

m
it

te
d

 b
o

d
ie

s

•
M

an
ag

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ns

 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
w

he
re

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
bo

di
es

 a
re

 o
ffe

rin
g 

ea
rly

 
re

tir
em

en
t a

nd
 r

ed
un

da
nc

ie
s 

pl
ac

in
g 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

kl
oa

d 
on

 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 
se

ve
ra

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

4.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
re

ss
u

re
s 

–
P

en
si

o
n

 
fu

n
d

•
P

en
si

on
 fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 
re

qu
iri

ng
 to

 w
ith

dr
aw

 f
ro

m
 a

ss
et

s 
to

 fu
nd

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

on
 b

en
ef

its
 

pa
ya

bl
e 

th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 in
 y

ea
r.

 P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

ne
ed

 t
o 

be
 

ab
le

 to
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 th
es

e 
de

m
an

ds
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t m
ar

ke
ts

.

5.
 T

ri
en

n
ia

l v
al

u
at

io
n

•
D

em
an

ds
 o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s'

 ti
m

e 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

in
g 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 p

as
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
an

d 
re

gu
la

r 
di

al
og

ue
 w

ith
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y.

O
u

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

•
W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
  t

he
 P

en
si

on
 

F
un

d 
co

m
pl

ie
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

IP
F

A
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
r 

su
bs

ta
nt

iv
e 

te
st

in
g

•
W

e 
w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 

ch
an

ge
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

gu
la

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

w
ith

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

vi
ew

 w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r 

di
al

og
ue

 w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
as

se
ss

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 th

is
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

on
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

. W
e 

w
ill

 r
ai

se
 a

ny
 

co
nc

er
ns

 w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r 
re

gu
la

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ch

an
ge

s 
 o

n 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 h
el

d 
by

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

  a
nd

 a
dj

us
t o

ur
 te

st
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.

•
W

e 
w

ill
  m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r 

di
al

og
ue

 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

as
se

ss
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
is

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
on

 th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 

fu
nd

. W
e 

w
ill

 r
ai

se
 a

ny
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
. 

Page 13



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
6

D
ev

is
e 

au
d

it
 s

tr
at

eg
y

(p
la

n
n

ed
 c

o
n

tr
o

l r
el

ia
n

ce
?

)

Ou
r a
ud
it a
pp
roa
ch G

lo
b

al
 a

u
d

it
 t

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y
E

n
su

re
s 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
IS

A
s)

C
re

at
es

 a
n

d
 t

ai
lo

rs
 

au
d

it
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s
S

to
re

s 
au

d
it

ev
id

en
ce

D
o

cu
m

en
ts

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

an
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

en
tit

y

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t’s

 
fo

cu
s

U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

E
va

lu
at

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

’s
 r

es
ul

ts

In
he

re
nt

 
ris

ks

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ris
ks

O
th

er
ris

ks

M
at

er
ia

l 
ba

la
nc

es

Y
es

N
o

�
T

es
t c

on
tr

ol
s

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

�
T

es
ts

 o
f d

et
ai

l

�
T

es
t o

f d
et

ai
l

�
S

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
an

al
yt

ic
al

 
re

vi
ew

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

C
on

cl
ud

e 
an

d 
re

po
rt

G
en

er
al

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

ID
E

A

E
xt

ra
ct

 
yo

ur
 d

at
a

R
ep

or
t o

ut
pu

t 
to

 te
am

s

A
na

ly
se

 d
at

a 
us

in
g 

re
le

va
nt

 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s

D
ev

el
o

p
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 t
o

 
o

b
ta

in
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 

as
su

ra
n

ce
 th

at
 t

h
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

as
 a

 w
h

o
le

 a
re

 f
re

e 
fr

o
m

 m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t a

n
d

 
p

re
p

ar
ed

 in
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
la

re
sp

ec
ts

 
w

it
h

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fr

am
ew

o
rk

 u
si

n
g

 o
u

r 
g

lo
b

al
 m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

g
y 

an
d

 a
u

d
it

 s
o

ft
w

ar
e

N
ot

e:
a.

A
n 

ite
m

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
m

at
er

ia
l t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

if,
 th

ro
ug

h 
its

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

r 
no

n-
di

sc
lo

su
re

, t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
w

ou
ld

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 s

ho
w

 a
 tr

ue
 a

nd
 

fa
ir 

vi
ew

.

Page 14



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
7

An
 au
dit
 fo
cus
ed 
on
 ris
ks

We
 un

der
tak

e a
 ris

k b
ase

d a
ud

it w
her

eby
 we

 fo
cus

 au
dit

 ef
for

t o
n t

ho
se 

are
as 

wh
ere

 we
 ha

ve 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 ris

k o
f m

ate
ria

l m
iss

tat
em

ent
 in

 th
e a

cco
un

ts. 
Th

e 
tab

le b
elo

w s
ho

ws
 ho

w o
ur 

aud
it a

pp
roa

ch 
foc

use
s o

n t
he 

risk
s w

e h
ave

 id
ent

ifie
d t

hro
ugh

 ou
r p

lan
nin

g a
nd

 re
vie

w o
f th

e n
atio

nal
risk

s a
ffe

ctin
g t

he 
sec

tor
. 

De
fin

itio
ns 

of 
the

 lev
el o

f ri
sk 

and
 as

soc
iate

d w
ork

 ar
e g

ive
n b

elo
w:

Sig
nif

ica
nt

–S
ign

ific
ant

 ris
ks 

are
 typ

ica
lly 

no
n-r

ou
tin

e tr
ans

act
ion

s, a
rea

s o
f m

ate
ria

l ju
dge

me
nt 

or 
tho

se 
are

as 
wh

ere
 th

ere
 is 

a h
igh

 un
der

lyin
g (

inh
ere

nt)
 

risk
 of

 m
iss

tat
em

ent
. W

e w
ill u

nd
ert

ake
 an

 as
ses

sm
ent

 of
 co

ntr
ols

 (if
 ap

pli
cab

le) 
aro

un
d t

he 
risk

s a
nd

 ca
rry

 ou
t d

eta
iled

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g.
Ot

he
r–

Ot
her

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
are

 typ
ica

lly 
tho

se 
tra

nsa
ctio

n c
ycl

es 
and

 ba
lan

ces
 wh

ere
 th

ere
 ar

e h
igh

 va
lue

s, l
arg

e n
um

ber
s o

f tr
ans

act
ion

s 
and

 ris
ks 

ari
sin

g f
rom

, fo
r e

xam
ple

, sy
ste

m 
cha

nge
s a

nd
 iss

ues
 ide

nti
fie

d f
rom

 pr
evi

ou
s y

ear
s a

ud
its.

 W
e w

ill a
sse

ss 
con

tro
lsa

nd
 un

der
tak

e s
ub

sta
nti

ve 
tes

tin
g, t

he 
lev

el o
f w

hic
h w

ill b
e r

edu
ced

 wh
ere

 we
 ca

n r
ely

 on
 co

ntr
ols

.
No

ne
–O

ur 
risk

 as
ses

sm
ent

 ha
s n

ot 
ide

nti
fie

d a
 ris

k o
f m

iss
tat

em
ent

. W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ake

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g o
f m

ate
ria

l b
ala

nce
s.  

Wh
ere

 an
 ite

m 
in 

the
 

acc
ou

nts
 is 

no
t m

ate
ria

l w
e d

o n
ot 

car
ry 

ou
t d

eta
iled

 su
bst

ant
ive

 tes
tin

g.

M
at

er
ia

l(
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 
m

at
er

ia
l)

 
b

al
an

ce
?

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 

C
yc

le
In

h
er

en
t 

ri
sk

M
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t

ri
sk

?

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

P
la

n
n

ed
 

co
n

tr
o

l
re

lia
n

ce
?

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 t

es
ti

n
g

?

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
Y

es
S

ch
em

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
R

ec
or

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t
Y

es
�

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

Y
es

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

 to
 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
�

If 
m

at
er

ia
l

P
en

si
on

s 
pa

ya
bl

e
Y

es
B

en
ef

it
pa

ym
en

ts
M

ed
iu

m
O

th
er

M
em

be
r 

da
ta

 n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t/B
en

ef
its

 im
pr

op
er

ly
co

m
pu

te
d/

cl
ai

m
s 

lia
bi

lit
y 

un
de

rs
ta

te
d

Y
es

�

P
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 
an

d 
on

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
of

 le
av

er
s

Y
es

B
en

ef
it

pa
ym

en
ts

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
�

If 
m

at
er

ia
l

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

N
o

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

ex
pe

ns
es

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
X

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

in
co

m
e

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

 v
al

id
N

o
�

Page 15



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
8

An
 au
dit
 fo
cus
ed 
on
 ris
ks 
(co
nti
nu
ed)

M
at

er
ia

l(
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
ly

 
m

at
er

ia
l)

 
b

al
an

ce
?

T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 

C
yc

le
In

h
er

en
t 

ri
sk

M
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t

ri
sk

?

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
R

is
k

P
la

n
n

ed
 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 

as
su

ra
n

ce
?

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 t

es
ti

n
g

?

P
ro

fit
 a

nd
 lo

ss
 

on
 d

is
po

sa
l o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

va
lu

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

t a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

va
lid

N
o

�

T
ax

es
 o

n 
in

co
m

e
N

o
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
Lo

w
N

on
e

N
o

�

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ex
pe

ns
es

N
o

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
Lo

w
N

on
e

N
o

X

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

Y
es

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

M
ed

iu
m

O
th

er
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 n

ot
 v

al
id

F
ai

r 
va

lu
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t n
ot

 
co

rr
ec

t

N
o

�

C
ur

re
nt

as
se

ts
N

o
S

ch
em

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ca
sh

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
X

C
ur

re
nt

 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s

N
o

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

, 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts

Lo
w

N
on

e
N

o
x

Page 16



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
9

Sig
nif
ica
nt 
risk

s id
ent
ifie
d

'Sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s o

fte
n r

ela
te 

to 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
no

n-r
ou

tin
e tr

ans
act

ion
s a

nd
 ju

dge
me

nta
l m

att
ers

. N
on

-ro
uti

ne 
tra

nsa
ctio

ns 
are

 tra
nsa

ctio
ns 

tha
t ar

e u
nu

sua
l, e

ith
er 

du
e to

 siz
e o

r 
nat

ure
, an

d t
hat

 th
ere

for
e o

ccu
r in

fre
qu

ent
ly. 

Jud
gem

ent
al m

att
ers

 m
ay 

inc
lud

e th
e d

eve
lop

me
nt 

of 
acc

ou
nti

ng 
est

im
ate

s fo
r w

hic
ht

her
e is

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

me
asu

rem
ent

 
un

cer
tain

ty' 
(IS

A 3
15)

. 
In 

thi
s s

ect
ion

 we
 ou

tlin
e th

e s
ign

ific
ant

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
wh

ich
 we

 ha
ve 

ide
nti

fie
d.  

Th
ere

 ar
e tw

o p
res

um
ed 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

risk
s w

hic
h a

re 
app

lica
ble

 to
 all

 au
dit

s 
un

der
 au

dit
ing

 sta
nd

ard
s (I

nte
rna

tio
nal

 St
and

ard
s o

n A
ud

itin
g –

ISA
s)  

wh
ich

 ar
e li

ste
d b

elo
w:

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t r
is

k
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

S
u

b
st

an
ti

ve
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s

R
ev

en
u

e
U

nd
er

 IS
A

 2
40

 th
er

e 
is

a 
pr

es
um

ed
 ri

sk
 th

at
 

re
ve

nu
e 

(w
hi

ch
 fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

w
e 

ha
ve

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e,
 tr

an
sf

er
s 

in
to

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

) m
ay

 b
e 

m
is

st
at

ed
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
pr

op
er

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f 
re

ve
nu

e.

�
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
in

g 
of

 r
ev

en
ue

 r
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

fo
r 

bo
th

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

co
m

e;
 a

nd

�
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f s
am

pl
e 

te
st

in
g 

on
 m

at
er

ia
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
st

re
am

s.
 

M
an

ag
em

en
to

ve
r-

ri
d

e 
o

f 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 
U

nd
er

IS
A

 2
40

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

re
su

m
ed

 ri
sk

 th
at

 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

ve
r-

rid
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

is
 p

re
se

nt
 in

 a
ll 

en
tit

ie
s.

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

, j
ud

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 m

an
ag

em
en

t; 

�
T

es
tin

g 
of

 jo
ur

na
ls

 e
nt

rie
s;

 a
nd

�
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f u
nu

su
al

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
.

Page 17



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
10

Ot
her
 ris
ks

Th
e a

ud
ito

r sh
ou

ld e
val

uat
e t

he 
des

ign
 an

d d
ete

rm
ine

 th
e im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e e
nti

ty's
 co

ntr
ols

, in
clu

din
g r

ele
van

t co
ntr

ol 
act

ivit
ies

, o
ver

 th
ose

 ris
ks 

for
 wh

ich
, in

 th
e 

aud
ito

r's 
jud

gm
ent

, it
 is 

no
t p

oss
ibl

e o
r p

rac
tica

ble
 to

 re
du

ce 
the

 ris
ks 

of 
ma

ter
ial 

mi
sst

ate
me

nt 
at t

he 
ass

ert
ion

 lev
el t

o a
n a

cce
pta

bly
 lo

w l
eve

l w
ith

 au
dit

 ev
ide

nce
 ob

tain
ed 

on
ly f

rom
 su

bst
ant

ive
 pr

oce
du

res
 (IS

A 3
15)

. 

Ot
he

r r
ea

so
na

bly
 po

ssi
ble

 
ris

ks
De

scr
ipt

ion
Pla

nn
ed

 au
dit

pro
ce

du
re

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 n

ot
 v

al
id

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ot

va
lid

F
ai

r 
va

lu
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n

be
tw

ee
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 th

e 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

an
d 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

's
 o

w
n 

re
co

rd
s 

an
d 

se
ek

 e
xp

la
na

tio
ns

 fo
r 

an
y 

va
ria

nc
es

. 

•
W

e 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
in

 y
ea

r 
ch

an
ge

 o
f c

us
to

di
an

 a
nd

 s
ee

k 
to

 g
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f a

ss
et

s.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ha
ve

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f p

as
si

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 tr
an

sf
er

 o
f £

1.
4b

n 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 s

el
ec

t a
sa

m
pl

e 
of

 th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 h

el
d 

by
 th

e 
S

ch
em

e 
at

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

 a
nd

 
th

en
 te

st
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
by

 a
gr

ee
in

g 
pr

ic
es

 to
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 s
ou

rc
es

 w
he

re
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
(q

uo
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
) o

r 
by

 c
rit

ic
al

ly
 a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
(u

nq
uo

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

).
 

•
T

he
 e

xi
st

en
ce

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
 d

ire
ct

ly
 w

ith
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t c
us

to
di

an
s 

or
 b

y 
ag

re
em

en
t t

o 
le

ga
l d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 te

st
 a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
  s

al
es

an
d 

di
sp

os
al

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 b
ac

k 
to

 d
et

ai
le

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
od

ia
n 

an
d 

fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er

s.

B
en

ef
it

P
ay

m
en

ts
B

en
ef

its
 im

pr
op

er
ly

 c
om

pu
te

d/
cl

ai
m

s
lia

bi
lit

y 
un

de
rs

ta
te

d
•

W
e 

w
ill

 s
el

ec
t a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 tr
an

sf
er

s,
 p

en
si

on
s 

in
 p

ay
m

en
t (

ne
w

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g)
, l

um
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 r
ef

un
ds

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 te

st
ed

 b
y 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r f

ile
s.

  T
hi

s 
te

st
in

g 
is

 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

is
 c

or
re

ct
ly

 fi
le

d 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

co
nt

ro
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
op

er
at

ed
 b

y 
M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
F

un
d

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
fo

llo
w

ed
.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

at
io

na
lis

e 
pe

ns
io

ns
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

en
si

on
er

 n
um

be
rs

 a
nd

 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 c

om
pa

rin
g 

pe
ns

io
ns

 p
ai

d 
on

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

 to
 

en
su

re
 th

at
 a

ny
 u

nu
su

al
 tr

en
ds

 a
re

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

ily
 e

xp
la

in
ed

.

•
T

he
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

st
at

is
tic

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

co
rd

s.

Page 18



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
11

Ot
her
 ris
ks 
con

tin
ued

O
th

er
 r

ea
so

n
ab

ly
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 r
is

ks
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

P
la

n
n

ed
 a

u
d

it
p

ro
ce

d
u

re

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
R

ec
or

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 n
ot

 c
or

re
ct

.
•

W
e 

w
ill

 te
st

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 o
pe

ra
te

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 r

ec
ei

ve
s 

al
l e

xp
ec

te
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 fr
om

 m
em

be
r b

od
ie

s.

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

at
io

na
lis

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 re

ce
iv

ed
 w

ith
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r b

od
y 

pa
yr

ol
ls

 a
nd

 n
um

be
rs

 o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ne

rs
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ny

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

tr
en

ds
 

ar
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
ily

 e
xp

la
in

ed
.

A
X

IS
e

to
 A

lta
ir

T
he

 fu
nd

s 
A

X
IS

e
sy

st
em

 (
pe

ns
io

ns
 p

ay
ro

ll 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

) i
s 

be
in

g 
ch

an
ge

d 
in

 y
ea

r 
to

 A
lta

ir.
  

•
W

e 
w

ill
 g

ai
n 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y,
 a

nd
 g

en
er

at
es

 
co

rr
ec

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.;

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 th

e 
da

ta
 m

ig
ra

tio
n 

fr
om

 A
X

IS
e

to
 A

lta
ir,

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
  p

rio
r 

an
d 

po
st

 s
ys

te
m

 c
ha

ng
e,

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
re

co
rd

s 
he

ld
 in

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

 a
re

 a
cc

ur
at

e;
an

d

•
W

e 
w

ill
, w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 s

ee
k 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
.

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 b

an
k 

T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 h
as

 c
ha

ng
ed

 it
s 

pr
ov

id
er

 
of

 b
an

ki
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
fr

om
  R

B
S

to
 L

lo
yd

s 
 

T
S

B

•
W

e 
w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 te

st
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 b

ef
or

e 
an

d 
af

te
r 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
er

 o
f b

an
ks

;a
nd

•
W

e 
w

ill
 o

bt
ai

n 
di

re
ct

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
fr

om
  R

B
S

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

ey
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 h
ol

d 
as

se
ts

 o
f t

he
 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

.

Page 19



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
12

Re
sul
ts o

f in
ter
im
 au
dit
 wo

rk
Sc

op
e

As
 pa

rt o
f th

e in
ter

im
 au

dit
 wo

rk 
and

 in
 ad

van
ce 

of 
ou

r fi
nal

 ac
cou

nts
 au

dit
 fie

ldw
ork

, w
e h

ave
 co

nsi
der

ed:
•

the
 ef

fec
tiv

ene
ss 

of 
the

 in
ter

nal
 au

dit
 fu

nct
ion

•
int

ern
al a

ud
it's

 wo
rk 

on
 th

e P
ens

ion
 fu

nd
's k

ey 
fin

anc
ial 

sys
tem

s
•

wa
lkt

hro
ugh

 tes
tin

g t
o c

on
firm

 wh
eth

er 
con

tro
ls a

re 
im

ple
me

nte
d a

s p
er 

ou
r u

nd
ers

tan
din

g in
 ar

eas
 wh

ere
 we

 ha
ve 

ide
nti

fie
d a

 ris
k o

f m
ate

ria
l m

iss
tat

em
ent

•
a r

evi
ew

 of
 In

for
ma

tio
n T

ech
no

log
y (I

T) 
con

tro
ls

W
o

rk
p

er
fo

rm
ed

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

/S
u

m
m

ar
y

In
te

rn
al

au
d

it
W

e 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it'
s 

ov
er

al
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 C
IP

F
A

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e.
 W

he
re

 th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 d
ee

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
, w

e 
ca

n 
ta

ke
 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t a

nd
 c

an
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

its
el

f i
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 o

ve
ra

ll 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.

T
he

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
S

er
vi

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 

F
or

 th
e 

fir
st

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

w
e 

ca
nn

ot
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

e 
 h

as
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 th

e
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d

, a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

w
e 

ca
n 

no
t t

ak
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

om
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
in

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
in

g 
to

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t a
t t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

  

W
e 

ar
e

no
w

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r 
th

e 
se

co
nd

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r.

  W
e 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f t

he
 r

is
ks

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d,

 a
nd

 c
on

cl
ud

e 
on

 w
he

th
er

 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

S
er

vi
ce

 is
 n

ow
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d.

W
al

kt
h

ro
u

g
h

te
st

in
g

W
al

kt
hr

ou
gh

 te
st

s 
w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
ss

er
tio

n 
ris

ks
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 a

 r
is

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

W
ith

th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 y
ea

r 
en

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
al

ke
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

al
l m

at
er

ia
l 

sy
st

em
s 

th
at

 w
e 

co
ns

id
er

 p
re

se
nt

 a
 r

is
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

.

W
hi

ls
t n

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 w

er
e 

no
te

d,
 a

nd
 in

-y
ea

r 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
er

e 
ob

se
rv

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 o
ur

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

nt
ro

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
w

is
h 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u:

�
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 th
at

 b
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
se

le
ct

ed
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

 w
as

 n
ot

 s
ig

ne
d 

or
 d

at
ed

. T
he

re
fo

re
 w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

.  
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
da

te
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 , 

in
  a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 it

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.

Page 20



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
13

Re
sul
ts o

f in
ter
im
 au
dit
 wo

rk 
(co
nti
nu
ed)

W
o

rk
p

er
fo

rm
ed

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

/S
u

m
m

ar
y

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
(I

T
) 

co
n

tr
o

ls
O

ur
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t w

ill
 p

er
fo

rm
a 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l I

T
 c

on
tr

ol
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t c
ov

er
in

g 
bo

th
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

au
th

or
ity

 (W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il)
 a

nd
 M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d,

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
sy

st
em

. W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
fo

llo
w

 
up

  t
he

 is
su

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r.

 W
e 

w
ill

 
co

nc
lu

de
 w

he
th

er
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

lik
el

y 
to

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

.

T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
   

W
e 

w
ill

 r
ep

or
t a

ny
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 fi
nd

in
gs

 
to

 y
ou

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t.

Jo
u

rn
al

 e
n

tr
y 

co
n

tr
o

ls
W

e 
ha

ve
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

ou
r 

jo
ur

na
l e

nt
ry

 te
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
y 

m
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t o
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

.

W
e 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
te

st
in

g 
on

 jo
ur

na
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 re

co
rd

ed
 

fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 n
in

e 
m

on
th

s 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r,
 b

y 
ex

tr
ac

tin
g 

'u
nu

su
al

' e
nt

rie
s 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r r

ev
ie

w
. N

o 
is

su
es

 h
av

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 r

eq
ui

re
 to

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

.  
W

e 
w

ill
te

st
 jo

ur
na

l 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 v

is
it.

Page 21



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
14

Th
e 
au

di
t c

yc
le

Lo
gis
tics
 an
d o
ur 
tea
m

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

/
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

D
eb

ri
ef

In
te

ri
m

 a
u

d
it

vi
si

t
F

in
al

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 
vi

si
t

F
eb

ru
ar

y-
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3
Ju

ly
-S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
3

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

3
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
01

3

Ke
y p

ha
se
s o

f o
ur
 a
ud

it

20
12

-2
01

3

Da
te

Ac
tiv

ity

F
eb

ru
ar

y/
M

ar
ch

20
13

In
te

rim
 s

ite
 w

or
k 

10
Ju

n
e 

20
13

T
he

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 

A
ud

it
C

om
m

itt
ee

1
Ju

ly
 2

01
3

Y
ea

r
en

d 
fie

ld
w

or
k 

co
m

m
en

ce
s

A
u

g
u

st
 

20
13

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e

m
ee

tin
g

T
B

C
P

en
si

on
s 

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 r

ep
or

t o
ur

 
fin

di
ng

s

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 
20

13
A

ud
it

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

g 
to

 r
ep

or
t o

ur
 fi

nd
in

gs

S
ep

te
m

b
er

20
13

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
on

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 

an
nu

al
 re

po
rt

Ou
r t
ea

m

M
ik

e 
T

h
o

m
as

D
ir

ec
to

r
T

 0
16

1
21

4 
63

68
M

 0
78

80
 4

56
 1

73
E

 m
ik

e.
th

om
as

@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

H
ea

th
er

G
re

en
M

an
ag

er
T

 0
16

1
23

4 
63

81
M

 0
78

80
 4

56
 2

01
E

 h
ea

th
er

.g
re

en
@

uk
.g

t.c
om

 

C
h

ri
s

B
la

ke
m

o
re

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
T

 0
16

1
21

4 
63

97
E

 c
hr

is
.b

la
ke

m
or

e@
uk

.g
t.c

om
 

Page 22



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
15

Fe
es

£

Pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 a
ud

it
36

,5
80

Fee
s a
nd
 in
dep

end
enc

e

Ou
r f
ee

 a
ss
um

pt
io
ns
 in
cl
ud

e:
�

Ou
r fe

es 
are

 ex
clu

siv
e o

f V
AT

 
�

Su
pp

ort
ing

 sc
hed

ule
s to

 all
 fig

ure
s in

 th
e a

cco
un

ts 
are

 su
pp

lied
 by

 th
e a

gre
ed 

dat
es 

and
 in

 ac
cor

dan
ce 

wit
h t

he 
agr

eed
 up

on
 in

for
ma

tio
n r

equ
est

 lis
t

�
Th

e s
cop

e o
f th

e a
ud

it, 
and

 th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 an
d i

ts 
act

ivit
ies

 ha
ve 

no
t ch

ang
ed 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y
�

Th
e P

ens
ion

 fu
nd

 wi
ll m

ake
 av

aila
ble

 m
ana

gem
ent

 
and

 ac
cou

nti
ng 

sta
ff t

o h
elp

 us
 lo

cat
e in

for
ma

tio
n 

and
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 ex

pla
nat

ion
s

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 e
th
ic
s

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at t

her
e a

re 
no

 sig
nif

ica
nt 

fac
ts o

r m
att

ers
 th

at i
mp

act
 on

 ou
r in

dep
end

enc
e a

s a
ud

ito
rs t

hat
 we

 ar
e 

req
uir

ed 
or 

wis
h t

o d
raw

 to
 yo

ur 
att

ent
ion

. W
e h

ave
 co

mp
lied

 wi
th 

the
 Au

dit
ing

 Pr
act

ice
s B

oar
d's

 Et
hic

al 
Sta

nd
ard

s a
nd

 th
ere

for
e w

e c
on

firm
 th

at w
e a

re 
ind

epe
nd

ent
 an

d a
re 

abl
e to

 ex
pre

ss 
an 

ob
jec

tiv
e o

pin
ion

 on
 th

e 
fin

anc
ial 

sta
tem

ent
s.

Fu
ll d

eta
ils 

of 
all 

fee
s c

har
ged

 fo
r a

ud
it a

nd
 no

n-a
ud

it s
erv

ice
s w

ill b
e in

clu
ded

 in
 ou

r A
ud

it F
ind

ing
s re

po
rt a

t th
e 

con
clu

sio
n o

f th
e a

ud
it.

We
 co

nfi
rm

 th
at w

e h
ave

 im
ple

me
nte

d p
oli

cie
s a

nd
 pr

oce
du

res
 to

 m
eet

 th
e r

equ
ire

me
nt 

of 
the

 Au
dit

ing
 Pr

act
ice

s 
Bo

ard
's E

thi
cal

 St
and

ard
s.

Fe
es
 fo

r o
th
er
 se

rv
ic
es

S
er

vi
ce

F
ee

s 
£

A
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
he

 e
xt

ra
 r

is
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d.

W
e 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ris

ks
 in

 2
01

2/
13

 th
at

 m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k,

 o
ve

r 
an

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

w
or

k 
w

e 
w

ou
ld

 n
or

m
al

ly
 e

xp
ec

t t
o 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
to

 a
ud

it 
yo

ur
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 o
f p

la
ns

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
by

 M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it.

  I
f w

e 
id

en
tif

y 
th

at
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 w
or

k 
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fe
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

, w
e 

w
ill

 d
is

cu
ss

 th
is

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 

in
st

an
ce

 w
ith

 M
an

ag
em

en
t .

T
B

C

Page 23



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
16

Co
mm

un
ica
tio
n o
f a
ud
it m

att
ers
 wi
th 
tho
se 
cha
rge
d w

ith
 go
ver
nan

ce
O

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
p

la
n

A
u

d
it

 
fi

n
d

in
g

s

R
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t/t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e

�

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 s
co

pe
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t. 
F

or
m

, t
im

in
g 

an
d 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 g
en

er
al

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
�

V
ie

w
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

 o
f t

he
 e

nt
ity

's
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

es
, s

ig
ni

fic
an

t m
at

te
rs

 a
nd

 is
su

e 
ar

is
in

g 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 w
rit

te
n 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 s
ou

gh
t

�

C
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
�

�

A
 s

ta
te

m
en

t t
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
  r

el
ev

an
t e

th
ic

al
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
,  

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 w

hi
ch

 m
ig

ht
  

be
 th

ou
gh

t t
o 

be
ar

 o
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f n

on
-a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 b
y 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

 a
nd

 
ne

tw
or

k 
fir

m
s,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

  f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

D
et

ai
ls

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

s 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 th
re

at
s 

to
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce

�
�

M
at

er
ia

l w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
au

di
t

�

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
or

 s
us

pi
ci

on
 o

f f
ra

ud
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
ot

he
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

�

N
on

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

�

E
xp

ec
te

d 
m

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 th
e 

au
di

to
r's

 re
po

rt
, o

r 
em

ph
as

is
 o

f m
at

te
r

�

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
�

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

tie
s

�

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 g
oi

ng
 c

on
ce

rn
�

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
  (

IS
A

) 
26

0,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ot

he
r 

IS
A

s,
 p

re
sc

rib
e 

m
at

te
rs

 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 
w

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
ta

bl
e 

op
po

si
te

.  

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t, 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n,

 o
ut

lin
es

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

w
hi

le
 T

he
 A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 p
rio

r 
to

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
  a

nd
 

w
ill

 p
re

se
nt

 k
ey

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

n 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
as

 to
 h

ow
 th

es
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

so
lv

ed
.

W
e 

w
ill

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
or

 u
ne

xp
ec

te
d 

fin
di

ng
s 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
th

e 
au

di
t o

n 
a 

tim
el

y 
ba

si
s,

 e
ith

er
 in

fo
rm

al
ly

 o
r 

vi
a 

a 
re

po
rt

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e.

Re
sp
ec

tiv
e 
re
sp
on

sib
ili
tie

s
T

hi
s 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (w
w

w
.a

ud
it-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

po
in

te
d 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il
an

d 
P

en
si

on
 fu

nd
's

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t e

xt
er

na
l 

au
di

to
rs

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, t

he
 b

od
y 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
 

to
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 E

ng
la

nd
. A

s 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

 b
ro

ad
 r

em
it 

co
ve

rin
g 

fin
an

ce
 a

nd
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
m

at
te

rs
. 

O
ur

 a
nn

ua
l w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

is
 s

et
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

('t
he

 
C

od
e'

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 n

at
io

na
lly

 p
re

sc
rib

ed
 a

nd
 lo

ca
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 w
or

k.
 O

ur
 w

or
k 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
ke

y 
ris

ks
 w

he
n 

re
ac

hi
ng

 o
ur

 
co

nc
lu

si
on

s 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e.
 

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 fu
nd

's
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 d

oe
s 

no
t r

el
ie

ve
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r 

th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s.

Page 24



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
17

Ap
pen

dic
es

Page 25



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
   

|
18

Ac
tio
n p
lan

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h

-
S

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
co

nt
ro

l s
ys

te
m

M
ed

iu
m

-
E

ffe
ct

 o
n 

co
nt

ro
l s

ys
te

m
L

o
w

-
B

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e

R
ec

N
o

.
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
P

ri
o

ri
ty

M
an

ag
em

en
t r

es
p

o
n

se
Im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

d
at

e 
&

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty

1
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 th
at

 b
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 r

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

se
le

ct
ed

 fo
r 

re
vi

ew
 w

as
 n

ot
 s

ig
ne

d 
or

 d
at

ed
. T

he
re

fo
re

 
w

e 
ca

nn
ot

 c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

.  
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

m
us

t e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 it
 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
da

te
s 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
, i

n 
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 it

s 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.

M
ed

iu
m

B
an

k 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 a
re

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 a

 m
on

th
ly

 b
as

is
. 

H
ow

ev
er

,M
P

F
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l f
ut

ur
e 

ba
nk

 re
co

nc
ili

at
io

ns
 

ar
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 d

at
ed

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
is

.

Im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

.

P
et

er
 W

al
la

ch

Page 26



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

UK
 L

LP
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
UK

 L
LP

, a
 li

m
ite

d 
lia

bi
lit

y
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l L
td

 
(G

ra
nt

Th
or

nt
on

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 th
e 

br
an

d 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r t
o 

on
e 

or
 m

or
e 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t r

eq
ui

re
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
 

wo
rld

wi
de

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 b

y 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
of

 o
ne

 a
no

th
er

. G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 

gr
an

t-t
ho

rn
to

n.
co

.u
k

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the draft Annual Report of 
Merseyside Pension Fund for 2012/13. 

 
1.2 A copy of the draft Annual Report will be available for Members at the meeting. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The LGPS regulations require the pension Fund Annual Report to contain the Fund 
Accounts and Net Asset Statement with supporting notes and disclosures, prepared in 
accordance with proper practices. 

 
2.2 International Standards on Auditing (UK&I) 720 requires that auditors read any 

information published with the accounts.  It also states that the auditor should not issue 
an opinion until that other information is published. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 29



8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members approve the draft Annual Report of Merseyside Pension Fund for 
publication. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Regulation 34 of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Administration 
Regulations requires local authorities to produce an Annual Report for the year to 31 
March by 1 December of that year. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

The Fund’s draft annual report is brought annually to 

this Committee. 

 

 

Page 30



 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16TH SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2012/13 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: JIM MOLLOY 

INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO HOLDER:   

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present Members with the audited statement of 
accounts of Merseyside Pension Fund for 2012/13 and to respond to the 
Annual Governance Report (AGR) from Grant Thornton. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The purpose of the Statement of Audited Accounts is to present the overall 
financial position of the Pension Fund as at 31st March 2013 in accordance with 
prescribed guidance. 

 
2.2 The un-audited statement of accounts were discussed at a meeting of the 

Governance and Risk Working Party on 18 July and a presentation on the 
accounts was made at a training session open to Council on 12th August. 

 
2.3 Grant Thornton is close to completion of its audit of the accounts and the 

Annual Governance Report (AGR) is on this agenda.  They may provide a 
verbal update at the meeting on the AGR and officers will respond if necessary. 

 
2.4 A response to the AGR is contained in the appendices to this report.  Officers 

have agreed to all of the suggested adjustments to the accounts and to the 
recommendations.  

 
2.5 I have prepared a Letter of Representation on behalf of the Committee which 

gives assurances to the Auditor on various aspects relating to the Pension 
Fund. 

 
2.6 The Audit Opinion will be issued following final completion of the audit, 

consideration of the Annual Governance Report and approval of the amended 
Statement of Accounts at both the Pensions Committee and the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. Once approved, Grant Thornton have indicated that 
they will again issue an unqualified opinion, and state that the accounts present 
fairly the financial position of Merseyside Pension Fund as at 31 March 2013. 
Subject to this, the accounts as now shown will form the basis of the Annual 
Report for the year ended 31 March 2013. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 33



 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not relevant for this report 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising directly from this report 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

   
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental 
issues arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 That the Pensions Committee approves the audited Statement of Accounts for 
2012/13 considers the amendments to the draft accounts and the draft Annual 
Governance Report and the Letter of Representation. 

 
12.2 That the Action Plan within the Annual Governance Report is agreed, and that 

the Pensions Committee is informed of progress with its implementation. 
 
12.3 That the Pensions Committee refers the recommendations to the Audit and 

Risk Management Committee. 
 

13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Page 34



 

13.1 Under the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission Code of Audit 
Practice for Local Government, the District Auditor reports on Pension Fund 
Financial Statement, as part of those of the Council. 

 
13.2 As the Pension Fund receives a separate AGR, this report will first be 

considered by the Pensions Committee, and then by the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall 
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1310 
  email:   paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

1. A summary of the response to the AGR and action plan is attached as an 
appendix to this report. 

 
2. The statement of accounts forms part of the draft annual report which is a 

separate item on the agenda at this Committee meeting. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
The Statement of Accounts plus relevant working papers and the AGR from Audit 
Commission were used in the production of this report.  
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

18th SEPTEMBER 2012 

19th SEPTEMBER 2012 

19th SEPTEMBER 2011 

28th SEPTEMBER 2011 

27th SEPTEMBER 2010 

28th SEPTEMBER 2010 

 

Page 35



 

APPENDIX 1 
Response to Audit Commission Annual Governance Report  

Audit 2011/12 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this note is to set out the response to the Audit Commission 

Annual Governance Report Audit 2012/13.  
 
1.2 The key points are that subject to outstanding work there will be an unqualified 

opinion and that there are no material errors. All of the non material errors non 
trivial errors and disclosure errors have been amended. All of the 
recommendations have been agreed. The Audit Commission deliver a positive 
verdict on the conduct of the audit. 

 
2. Explanation of Unadjusted Misstatements 
 
2.1 Below is an extract from the Audit Report 
 

Property rental income of £3.194m has been incorrectly recognised as a receipt in 
advance within current liabilities in the net assets statement, rather than being 
recognised as income within the 2012/13 fund account. The effect of the misstatement 
is that both property rental income and the total net assets of the fund are understated 
by £3.194m. If this error were to be amended then the total net assets of the fund 
would increase from £5.819bn to £5.822bn. 

 
2.2 The management response to this is that whilst the finding is accepted the 

accounts will not be changed for the following reasons. 
 

• The amount is below the threshold for materiality agreed with the auditors 
before commencement of the audit. 

 
• This is an understatement of the Fund rather than an overstatement 

 
• This was identified at the end of the audit process and there are difficulties 

in amending the financial statements and notes at this late stage. 
 
2.3 The Fund is intending to review its procedures for monitoring of property 

income and the way in which reports from the managing agent (CBRE) are 
input to the Fund’s accounting systems. 

 
3. Recommendations relating to Misclassifications and Disclosure Changes 
 
3.1 Management at the Fund has agreed to the changes outlined in Grant 

Thornton’s report on page 13 which resulted in some changes to the notes to 
the financial statements. 

 
4. Recommendations relating to other matters 
 
4.1 There are no significant issues. 

Page 36



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: LGPS UPDATE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report updates Members of the latest developments relating to the proposed 
reform of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and outlines the current 
consultations that are taking place. In addition, it presents a position statement on 
the national Communication Plan - the focus of which is to promote the value of the 
new Scheme to the current membership.  

 
1.2 It also covers the recent Ministerial Statement and the guarantee from the 

Department for Education to cover outstanding LGPS exit debts upon the closure of 
an Academy.   

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

Reform of the LGPS – The 2014 Project 
 

2.1 Members previously considered the Fund’s formal responses to the three part 
consultation at the last committee meeting on 24 June 2013 (minute 6 refers). 
Issued on 28 March 2013, this consultation covered the main elements of the new 
Scheme design including transitional provisions seeking to protect previously 
accrued benefits.  

 
2.2 On 20 June the DCLG issued its third technical consultation on the LGPS 2014 draft 

regulations. These now appear generally fit for purpose and provide greater detail in 
terms of how the new Scheme will operate. The first drafts of the administration 
regulations are included and in the main they mirror the current regulatory provisions 
of the LGPS. 

 
2.3 MPF submitted its formal response within the prescribed deadline of 2nd August after 

seeking the approval of the Chair of Pensions Committee. The response highlighted 
provisions within the draft regulations that appeared ambiguous; it also provided a 
considered view on questions posed in regard outstanding policy decisions.  
 
A copy of the response is attached as Appendix 1 to the report and the technical 
consultation paper can be accessed at the following website address: 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-
2014 

 
2.4 The most significant policy issue related to the management of employer risk and 

exit debts. It questioned the merit of retaining the provisions within the regulations to 
allow for “separate admission agreement funds” to be established in the new 
Scheme.  
 
MPF concurs with the LGA’s view that the provision should not only be carried 
forward but also extended to allow distinct funds for any type of scheme employers. 
 
This would enable administering authorities to establish separate funds and ring-
fence liabilities to relevant employers within the overall Fund. This would then allow 
closing deficits to be contained within the separate pooled fund rather than being 
spread across all employers.  

 
 DCLG: Discussion Paper – New Governance Arrangements LGPS 2014 
 
2.5 DCLG also issued a discussion paper on Scheme Governance on 20 June 2013 – 

this takes into consideration key provisions within the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013 that are required for the LGPS from next year.  

 
Comments were invited on a number of questions; these responses will then be 
used by DCLG when formulating draft regulations on Governance, due for 
consultation later this year.  

 
2.6 The deadline for the response was 30th August 2013, and MPF’s response was 

shared with the Chair of the Pensions Committee for comment prior to submission. 
 
2.7 The areas being addressed within the discussion paper are as follows: 

• Timing of the implementation of Scheme Advisory and Local Pension Boards 
• The role of the “Scheme Manager”  (i.e. the local administering authority) 
• Implementation of “Local Pension Boards” (i.e.  the new local scrutiny board) 
• Implementation of the “Scheme Advisory Board”  (i.e. the national board) 

 
2.8 The consultation seeks views on a list of 26 questions; the response is attached as 

Appendix 2 of the report and the original 15 page discussion paper can be accessed 
at the following website address: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-
england-and-wales-new-governance-arrangements 

 
2.9 The main area of contention amongst Administering Authorities is the question 

posed as to whether the new Scheme regulations require “Local Pension Boards” to 
be established as a body separate to the current statutory pension committee. 

 
It is the adopted view that where a statutory pension committee is undertaking the 
role of “Scheme Manager” the creation of a separate “Local Pension Board” will 
create another level of governance which is not strictly required if robust governance 
arrangements exist. 

 

Page 38



Whilst it cannot be refuted that it is difficult for any committee to self scrutinise, this 
obstacle could be overcome through the appropriate use of independent 
professional advisors - therefore permitting the statutory committee and the “Local 
Pension Board” role to be undertaken by the same body. 
 
However, restrictions imposed by the Public Service Pension Act will make it difficult 
for the scrutiny role to be carried out by an existing committee, particularly the 
requirement for the Pension Board to have equal numbers of employer and member 
representatives. 

 
Consequently, the concluding opinion of MPF was that as the principal factors of 
good governance are transparency, accountability and the effective management of 
risk, the underlying objective would be best achieved by the separation of the two 
bodies - with different members assigned to the “Scheme Manager Committee” and 
to the “Local Pension Board”. 

 
The resultant outcome will be applied consistently across the Scheme as a whole 
and there will be no provision within the regulations to choose an alternative option.  

 
Statutory Consultation on Councillors’ access to LGPS membership 

 
2.10 Following the written Ministerial statement to Parliament on 19 December 2012 

regarding Councillors’ access to membership of the LGPS from 1 April 2014 
onwards, DCLG issued a Statutory Consultation on “Taxpayer-funded pensions for 
councillors and other elected office holders” on 10 April 2013. 

 
2.11 The closing date for this consultation was 5 July 2013. 

 
2.12 MPF considered the three options presented, alongside the technical aspects and 

the funding implications.  A draft response was circulated to all Members and 
following a brief discussion at the last Committee meeting, MPF’s response was 
submitted within the prescribed deadline. A copy of the response is attached as 
Appendix 3 of the report. 
 

2.13 The response presented the view that as the Fund’s primary objective is to provide 
valuable pension savings to people providing local public services, it supported the 
continued participation of Councillors in the LGPS.  
 
However, continuation should be maintained as a ‘discretion’ of the employing 
authority, in recognition of the Localism agenda allowing individual councils to 
consider local needs and circumstances. 
 
In addition, Councillors’ participation should be included within the general scope of 
the 2014 Scheme, including the same member contribution rate bandings – thus 
bringing a closure to the current separate Councillors’ scheme 
 

 
2.14  DCLG has reported that there has been immense engagement with the consultation 

with over 700 responses - DCLG intend to advise Ministers shortly of the likely 
outcome.  
 

Page 39



LGPS 2014 – Communications  
 

2.15 Communications Plan 
 

The national draft Communication Plan for LGPS 2014 was approved by the LGPC 
in July 2013. The plan pulls together the layers of communications for scheme 
members, employers and practitioners that are being collaboratively worked on for 
the new scheme.  It is expected that this plan will be updated as and when required 
in line with the Reform process.  

  
2.16 Employer Communications  
 

A briefing note for employers has been published by the Local Government 
Association to highlight the implications of the scheme changes on payroll systems 
and employer responsibilities.  

 
 MPF has shared this note with all employers and any organisations which are due to 

be admitted into the scheme before April 2014. We advise that this information 
should be shared widely with their payroll sections/providers.  National work is 
ongoing to produce a more in depth payroll specification for issue to administering 
authorities, employers, payroll providers and software providers.  

 
 2.17 Employee Communications 
 

The first of a suite of leaflets for LGPS 2014 has now been produced, entitled ‘The 
LGPS is changing from 1 April 2014’ - this is a short leaflet designed to 
communicate the main changes to the scheme.  A version of this leaflet will go out to 
all members of the Scheme as part of the Annual Benefit Statement 2013. 

 
 The original leaflet is attached as Appendix 4 of the report. This and future leaflets 

are intended as providing the content of the national LGPS2014.org website, 
administered by MPF. 

 
 Ministerial Statement: Academies and LGPS Liabilities 
 
2.18  On 2 July 2013, The Secretary of State for Education confirmed in a statement to 

Parliament that the Department for Education (DfE) will now provide a guarantee, 
meeting any outstanding pension liabilities should an Academy close. This 
guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. 

 
2.19 The provision of the guarantee is intended to allow Administering Authorities to “treat 

academies equitably” with Local Authorities when setting employer contribution 
rates. It is expected this guarantee should underpin proposals from central 
government to amend the LGPS regulations so as to require local authorities to 
provide actuarial pooling should an academy wish to adopt this funding option. A 
consultation on this will be issued shortly. 

 
2.20 To date, in the absence of clear and definitive guidance from the DfE & DCLG, funds 

have taken different approaches when setting employer contribution rates for 
academies. As such officers have taken advice from the actuary to form a consistent 
approach within this Fund on how to deal with converting schools. 

Page 40



 
2.21 When allocating deficit cash sums and setting recovery periods MPF aligns the 

contribution requirements to the notional position of the school prior to conversion 
which is broadly in accordance with the DfE’s objective of funding academies on an 
equitable basis to maintained schools. 

 
2.22 The guarantee recently provided still leaves a number of questions as under the 

terms of the guarantee, the DfE and HM Treasury reserve the right to ‘withdraw the 
guarantee at any time’. Instances when the guarantee may be withdrawn include;  

 
• Estimated contingent liability (CL) ceilings are exceeded (which could mean the 

withdrawal of the guarantee when it is most needed); 
 

• Projected costs are no longer affordable from within DfE’s existing budget; 
 

• Projected costs are not approved by HM Treasury; 
 

• HM Treasury reserve the right to remove the guarantee due to spending 
considerations or policy developments.  

 
 Many Administering Authorities are concerned that the substance of this guarantee 

and HM Treasury’s exclusion clause could continue to leave funds exposed with exit 
liabilities being spread amongst all other participating employers. 

 
2.23. Until more detail is released officers are of the opinion this does not change the 

stance already taken, which attempts to treat the academies as equitably as 
possible within the current LGPS regulations. 

 
2.24 As part of the 2013 Valuation process, officers will be reviewing the covenants of all 

employers including academies and taking a view on the appropriateness of the 
funding approach and application of recovery periods. 

 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There is a risk that a full suite of “fit for purpose” Statutory Instruments and Guidance 
from the Government Actuaries Department (GAD) will not be available in time to 
effectively administer the new LGPS from April 2014.  

 
 Software providers in particular are voicing concern in the timing of finalised 

regulations and guidance, as they are required to translate this into delivering the 
required benefit calculation packages and system upgrades.   

 
3.2 There is a risk that the government will compel Administering Authorities to fund 

academies on a basis that assumes that the guarantee provided by the DfE will 
totally eradicate the risk of any unrecoverable debt arising on the closure of an 
Academy. The guarantee in its current form, does not offer the same degree of 
security as other scheduled employers in the Fund, as it is limited in amount and 
may no longer be there when it is most needed. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 

Page 41



5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  
 

It is important that MPF responds to the statutory consultations that will lead to 
revised regulations and a reformed LGPS, particularly when relating to Governance, 
Cost Control and Administration, as it is crucial to ensure the Scheme is well–run 
and affordable in the long term.  

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 MPF needs to initiate a formal strategic change programme to overhaul current 
administration arrangements, resources and communications; in recognition of the 
fundamental change of introducing a Career Average benefit pension arrangement 
complete with ongoing protections to the pre-2014 Final Salary benefits. 

 
7.2 There will be increased financial resources required if the regulations require a 

separate pension board to be set up in addition to the statutory pensions committee.  
 
 DCLG also state within the Governance paper that if the scheme advisory board is 

to undertake its full range of duties effectively, the annual cost of administration is 
likely to be significant.  It has been estimated that this cost would be in the region of 
an additional £3k to £5k per annum. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 Depending on the outcome of the consultation on revisions to the scheme 
management, there may be implications for the Council with the necessity to revise 
the constitution - to reflect the relationship that may be created between the 
Pensions Committee and the new Local Pensions Board. 

 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 The reforms to the LGPS have already been assessed by Government with regard 

to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note the report. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

Page 42



13.1 There is a requirement for Members of the Pension Committee to be kept up to date 
with legislative developments to carry out their decision making role in order to 
enable them to make informed decisions. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 
 

1 MPF submission dated 2 August 2013 to DCLG Consultation on Draft LGPS 
2013 Regulations. 

 
2 MPF submission dated 30 August 2013 to DCLG Discussion Paper on the New 

Governance Arrangements LGPS 2014. 
 
3 MPF submission dated 5 July to DCLG on Tax-Payer Funded Pensions for 

Councillors  
 

4 LGPS2014 – Scheme Changes Leaflet 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

The LGPS update is a standing item on the 

Pensions Committee agenda. 

 

 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



LGPS 2014 Consultation
Department for Communities & Local Government
Zone 5/G6
Elland House
Bressenden Place
London, SW1E 5DU

Dear Mr Perry

CONSULTATION RESPONSE: DRAFT REGULATIONS LGPS 2013 

Wirral Council is responsible for the administration of the Merseyside Pension Fund which is
part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The Merseyside Pension Fund deals
with the LGPS pension administration and investments on behalf of the 5 Merseyside District
Councils, and over 130 other employers on Merseyside and elsewhere throughout the UK.

The Fund has over 44,500 active contributing members, 44,700 pensioners and 34,500
deferred pensioners. It is responsible for the investment and accounting for a pension fund of
£5.6 billion.

I would be grateful if you would consider the following comments in relation to the third
period of statutory consultation on the new Local Government Pension Scheme. This
response specifically highlights provisions within the draft regulations that appear
ambiguous under Annex A and provides a view on the connected questions posed in
Chapter 2 and Annex B.

1/ Comments on Annex A: Draft Regulations

(Part 1) Membership, contributions and benefits.

The provisions that appear to require further amendment in order to provide clarity and
ensure the desired intent of the regulations is consistently delivered by employers and
administering authorities are as follows:

Regulation 10 – Temporary Reduction in Contributions

10(5)(a) The reference to member should be removed as the provision should merely
refer to the “automatic re enrolment date” as defined in Schedule 1 which relates to the
date the employer has chosen as its re enrolment date and is not member specific.

This will allow all members in the 50/50 section to be moved into the main scheme
despite being a non–eligible jobholder or an entitled worker as defined under the 2008
Pension Act.

   

 Direct Line: 0151 242-1390 

Please ask for: Yvonne Caddock 

Date: 2 August 2013 

Page 45



2

An additional paragraph prescribing that an election to pay reduced contributions would
not lapse if the member’s employment is subject to a TUPE transfer would avoid
inconsistency of application amongst administrators.

In a similar vein if it is the intention that the employer should continue to pay the full
employer contribution as opposed to 50% of the employer rate a definitive clause within
this provision would clarify the position.

Regulation 12 Contributions during child related leave

If it is the intention that unpaid additional child related leave is not included within the
circumstances in which pension accrual is calculated using assumed pensionable pay,
then the regulation is silent in respect of unpaid additional child related leave and the
ability to purchase additional pension contributions (“APCs”) by virtue of regulation 16.

Regulation 15 – Employer contribution during absences

This is a welcome provision to specify employer’s responsibilities with regard to
contributions during employee’s absences and provides a clear steer for administration
purposes.

However, clause (4) should not include the reference to child related leave as this
precludes members on unpaid child related leave electing to purchase “APCs”.

As drafted this provision suggests that employer’s must meet two thirds of the cost of all
arrangements and does not appear to deliver the desired intent of an employer having a
discretionary policy in selected circumstances.

Regulation 17 – Additional voluntary contributions

MPF notes the removal of the 50% limit of pensionable pay but fears this may encourage
the practice of ‘recycling tax relieved pension savings’ immediately prior to retirement.
By providing the opportunity for member’s to circumvent the main scheme
commutation provisions to provide an alternative means of acquiring a tax free lump
sum, it would ultimately mean employers would incur further costs to provide future
pension benefits.

The removal of the 50% limit fundamentally undermines the objectives of the new
scheme design to deliver saving and ensure the long term viability of the scheme.

As there is escalating concern in regard the continuing benefit of higher rate tax relief
for pension saving this provision will provoke further opposition to continued generous
tax relief for the higher earner.

Clause 12 allows the value of AVCs, on the death of a member, to be paid at the
discretion of the Administering Authority along with other death gratuities from the
main scheme. This change is acknowledged as it provides a common sense approach and
simplifies practicalities for both administrators and beneficiaries.

Page 46



3

Regulation 18 – Rights to return of contributions

Clause 6 is inconsistent with provisions relating to death gratuities, as payments of
contributions upon death are paid to the estate as opposed to the member’s nominee
or personal representative at the discretion of the Administering Authority.

Regulation 21 – Assumed Pensionable Pay

Clause 2(b) needs to include a reference to ordinary or paid additional child related
leave to define the specific circumstances for assumed pensionable pay to apply under
this provision if it remains the intention that unpaid additional child related leave is to
be excluded from the automatic uplift to pay.

Regulation 32 Commencement of Pensions

We acknowledge the amendment to clause 10 as suggested in our previous response
now stipulates that the payment of an ill health pension from deferred status will
commence from the date of determination as opposed to the date the member became
incapable of work as prescribed in the previous draft regulations.

Regulation 39 – Calculation of ill health pension amounts

Clause 10 may need to include a reference to a specific time period for a reduction in
pay to be treated as assumed pensionable pay when calculating the member’s ill health
pension including enhanced pension adjustments. This would be in support to our
comments below in regard Question 2 in Chapter 2.

Regulation 40 Death Grants: active members

Clause 3 needs to include a reference to pensionable pay to cover situations where the
member had not been receiving reduced pay immediately before death to clarify that
the calculation of the death grant is only based on assumed pensionable pay in the
relevant circumstances in accordance with regulation 21(5).

The reference to pensionable pay should also be included within regulation 41(4) (b), 42
(4) (b), 42 (5) (b), 42 (9) (b) and 42 (10) (b).

Part 2 – Administration

Regulation 64 – Special circumstances where revised actuarial valuations and
certificates must be obtained

In circumstances where surpluses occur at the closure of an admission agreement it
would present a more balanced position if the regulations provided for a return of
contributions, as bodies are required to meet any deficit upon termination.

Clause 6 could be amended to give administering authorities greater flexibility to amend
employer contributions in specific circumstances eg, a material change in membership
or higher than expected salary or pension increases between triennial valuations by
invoking the power to obtain a revised rates and adjustment certificate without the
employers consent.

Page 47



4

Schedule 2 Part 3

Regulation 5 the proposed clarification carried forward from 2008 Administration
Regulations that a Transferee Admission Body should enter into separate admission
agreement in respect of different contracts with the same employer is a sensible position
statement.

However, when the contractor has secured a framework contract with the local authority
permitting a number of schools to engage the services over a prescribed period, the
requirement to draw up separate agreements with each school would lead to administrative
inefficiencies. Although the non teaching staffs are deemed local authority employees for
pension purposes, the individual schools take out separate contracts with the contractor.

In practice the schools enter into individual arrangements at different dates under the
original contract but the regulation as currently worded requires separate admission
agreements to include each school and the local authority.

In line with MPF’s former comments it would be practical for the regulations to permit that
there can be one admission agreement, which covers numerous contract dates with
different schools and the same local authority.

Existing LGPS 2007 Admin Regulation 7(8)

Furthermore, the provision which allows admission agreements to not be restricted
to a geographical area has not been carried forward to the draft provisions. This
regulation allows employers wishing to offer the LGPS choice as to the preferred
authority to administer the scheme for their employees.

2/ Response to questions in Chapter 2 of the Consultation Document

Q1. Is the Department right in saying that the take up of additional survivor benefits is
extremely low? [Regulation 16]

Since 2008, the Fund has 17 members who have entered into an ARC contract to purchase
additional survivor benefits from an active membership base of over 44,500.

Q2. Should there be enhancement in this way given that there would be no equivalent
protection for a member who remained in part time work rather than taking ill health
retirement? [Regulation 39]

There should be enhancement but only if the reduction in hours or grade, or a move to a job
with less responsibility, occurred within the period of 3 years continuous membership prior
to the ill health retirement or death in service.

The 3 year limit is recommended as HM Treasury have stipulated that protections should
only be for temporary and unexpected reductions in pay. The 3 year limit also draws a
parallel with the 3 year limit for temporary Tier 3 benefits. If the reduction in hours or grade
(or a move to a job with less responsibility) carries on beyond 3 years then there is a
reasonable argument that it is no longer a temporary reduction in pay and has simply
become part of the person’s new terms and conditions of employment.

Page 48



5

Q3. Comments are requested as to whether this regulation should be retained or if it
would be sufficient to rely on the overriding legislation. [Regulation 51]

Section 13 of the Pension Schemes Act 1993 requires the Scheme rules to specify when the
GMP is to be paid and when the GMP can be postponed and therefore regulation 51 should
be retained in the Regulations.

Q4. Is there a need to provide for separate admission agreement funds to be established
in the new Scheme? [Regulation 54]

MPF supports the LGA view that the facility provided by this regulation should not only be
retained but be extended so that the administering authority can establish separate Funds
for any types of Scheme employer (not just admission bodies).

This would enable administering authorities to establish separate Funds in order to ensure
liabilities are ring fenced to the employers within the relevant Fund should one of them
cease to participate leaving a deficit. This would allow the deficit to be spread across only
the employers participating in that Fund, rather than being spread across all employers.

Q5. Is the list of statement items shown at regulation 69(3) complete? If not, could you
please describe what needs to be included. [Regulation 69]

We understand that LGA is submitting a comprehensive response to this question with the
proposal to introduce additional statutory requirements within regulation 80(3) for
employers to submit further information in the form of a ‘closure statement’ – the purpose
to assist administering authorities in reconciling payments remitted at year end and to
facilitate the timely issuing of annual benefit statements and pension saving statements.

However, the LGA’S suggested submission date of three months from the end of the
Scheme year is impractically short for administering authorities, as it is simply aligned to
HMRC requirements in relation to pension saving statements.

Fund’s would be unable to deal with the amount of associated reconciliation and data
quality work with employers during the ‘holiday season’ if this timeframe is imposed.
Equally, this three month timeframe will not fit with our Actuary’s timetable for undertaking
triennial valuations.

MPF would strongly suggest a one month timeframe from the end of the Scheme year for
employers to submit a ‘closure statement’.

Q6. Should we include provision for interest to be paid on the late payment by scheme
employers? If so, what period would constitute “late”? [Regulation 70]

Yes, the ability in regulation 71 to charge employers interest for late employer payments
(including those due under regulation 70) should be retained. The period that constitutes
“late” is already defined in regulation 71 and is satisfactory.

However, it is unclear whether this provision permits the addition of late payment interest
to the exit debt when an employer exits the scheme. Regulation 64 makes it clear that the
debt must be calculated as at the exit date but the calculations are often carried out some
months after the exit date.

Page 49



6

Common practice is for interest in line with the valuation discount rate to be added to the
exit debt but it would be preferable if the regulations clarified whether the interest should
be applied in accordance with regulation 71.

Q7. Should the new regulations set out what Fund should pay in the case where the
administering authority has more than one Fund? [Regulation 88]

Where there is more than one Fund as a result of regulation 54, then it would appear a
sensible approach to include provision within regulation 88 to prescribe the appropriate
Fund which is responsible for meeting increases for guaranteed minimum pensions.

It may also be necessary to extend this provision to include any other payments in
accordance with the regulations.

Q8. Do you think the current forfeiture provisions which have been carried forward into
these draft regulations work well, or would you prefer it all to be dealt with by the courts
with the removal of the role of the Secretary of State? [Regulation 91]

The requirement for the Secretary of State to be included in cases in relation to forfeiture
following convictions for serious employment related offences should be maintained to
facilitate a timely and informed process and to avoid a dilution of power and any
complications that may arise from a court judgement.

Given the rarity of these cases with Regulation 93 providing the usual mechanism for
recovery and the statutory nature of the Scheme it would seem appropriate that the
Secretary of State retains authority in forfeiture cases.

3/ Response to questions in Annex B of the Consultation Document

Q1. Assumed Pensionable Pay

We do not believe there are any other cases that currently merit an extension of the list of
circumstances under regulation 21(2) in which APP should be applied.

Q2. Club Transfers

It is unclear how the LGPS can participate within the Public Sector transfer club in respect of
membership from April 2014 to April 2015 due to the LGPS moving from Final Salary twelve
months in advance of the other Public Sector Schemes.

To meet the requirements of the Public Service Bill It would appear necessary during this
period for the 2013 Transitional provisions to provide flexibility to allow members who are
active on or after 31 March 2014 who transfer in service from a public sector scheme
without having a disqualifying break of more than 5 years to receive actuarially equivalent
benefits within the 2008 scheme maintaining the final salary link.

Transfers from the LGPS in relation to post 2014 membership could be based on the cash
equivalent value of the pension pot converted to membership within the receiving scheme
and adjusted accordingly to reflect that the service credit would be linked to final salary at
retirement.

Page 50



7

Q3. Former scheme employers

As presently worded, the draft regulations provide that it shall be for the administering
authority to make a decision on a discretion that could have been taken by a former
employer that has ceased to be a Scheme employer.

The alternative to this arrangement would be for a defunct employer to be asked to make a
decision on a former employee of a former pension scheme, this seems unrealistic as it
would incur costs and time with no compulsion to respond.

Q4. Employers’ contributions to be no less than employees’ contributions

We agree that the contribution rate paid by employers must always be at least that set by
the Fund actuary and that the total employer rate (future and past service) should never be
less than the total yield set for employees.

Q5. Adjustment of pension accounts

On balance MPF believes that there should not be a general power allowing administering
authorities to make “any other adjustment” to a pension account that they consider to be
appropriate. Such a power could be open to misuse. If situations arise where a new type of
adjustment is required this should be added to the appropriate regulation via an amending
Statutory Instrument.

4/ Conclusion

MPF is of the general opinion that the Draft Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013 meet the requirement of providing clear direction for the successful administration of
the Scheme post April 2014.

We await the further updates and expected second consultation on the Transitional
Provisions & Savings Regulations.

Yours sincerely

Yvonne Caddock

Principal Pensions Officer

cc. Jeff Houston, Director of Pensions LGA

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Scheme governance discussion paper
Department for Communities & Local Government
Zone 5/G6
Elland House
Bressenden Place
London, SW1E 5DU

Dear Mr Perry

Discussion Paper- New Governance Arrangements LGPS 2014 

Wirral Council is responsible for the administration of the Merseyside Pension Fund which is
part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The Merseyside Pension Fund deals
with the LGPS pension administration and investments on behalf of the 5 Merseyside District
Councils, and over 130 other employers on Merseyside and elsewhere throughout the UK.

The Fund has over 44,500 active contributing members, 44,700 pensioners and 34,500
deferred pensioners. It is responsible for the investment and accounting for a pension fund of
£5.6 billion.

I would be grateful if you would consider the following comments in relation to the paper
on the new governance arrangements required for the impending 2014 Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Comments on Questions Posed

"Timing"

Q1. What period, after new governance regulations are on the statute book, should be
given for scheme managers/administering authorities to set up and implement local
pension boards?

The setting up of new boards requires a significant change to the constitution of the Council
and also requires the need to consider who can be co opted and/or appointed to these
boards following an appropriate selection process. The specific skills set required of board
members may limit the pool of potential candidates.

As the main focus of the Fund’s efforts and resources will be towards the implementation of
the new benefit structure, the introduction of local pension boards prior to the legislative
date of April 2015 will be extremely challenging and unwelcome.

   

 Direct Line: 0151 242-1390 

Please ask for: Yvonne Caddock 

            Date:   30 August 2013 

Page 53



2

The time consuming exercise of amending constitutions within the civic calendar, in addition
to finding, selecting and nominating employer and scheme member representatives, would
mean that an early implementation date would be unrealistic.

In addition, the Public Service Act does not regulate for the oversight role of the Pension
Regulator to take effect until April 2015. As a key remit of the pension board is to comply
with the regulator’s guidance, it would appear appropriate that the creation of the board
should coincide with the date of the regulator’s active involvement with the LGPS.

Due to the current ‘Call for Evidence’ on the future structure of LGPS funds it would appear
more sensible to understand the outcome of the intended strategy before prescribing
changes to the current governance arrangements . Thereafter it would be necessary for a
lead in period of at least 12 months to allow administering authorities to become fully
compliant with both the technical and governance regulations.

Q2. How long after new governance regulations are on the statute book should the
national scheme advisory board become operational?

As the work of the Shadow Scheme Advisory Board will be useful to shape the Statutory
Scheme Advisory Board It would appear appropriate for the former to be functioning for a
period of 12 to 18 months embedding its remit and structure before the Statutory Board
becomes operational.

“Responsible authority” & “Scheme manager”

Q3. Please give details of any such “connected” scheme that you are aware of.

Not aware of any “connected” scheme

Q4. Are there any schemes connected to the main Local Government Pension
Scheme, other than an injury or compensation scheme, that the new Scheme
regulations will need to refer to in setting out the responsibilities of scheme
managers?

Not aware of any “connected” scheme .

“Pension Boards”

Q5. What “other matters”, if any, should we include in Scheme regulations to add to the
role of local pension boards?

The role of the local Board is to act as a scrutiny function and not to be involved at the
decision making stage. It should therefore perhaps be left to each local board to decide
how it fulfils that role within the parameters of the regulations and which matters it wishes
to consider. It is imperative however that the local Board should ensure that all the policies
and statements that are in place are current and are being referred to in the decision
making process.

Page 54



3

Q6. Should Scheme regulations make it clear that nobody with a conflict of interest, as
defined, may be appointed to or sit on a pension board?

This may act as a barrier and may be better mandated with the requirement for a conflict of
interest policy to be published that sets out how any conflict will be managed and an agreed
definition of what amounts to a conflict of interest.

The focus should be on identifying when there is a potential for conflict in relation to an
individual situation and where that conflict cannot be adequately managed.

It would be of benefit to funds for appropriate statutory guidance to be issued on how
conflicts of interest should be managed.

Q7. Should Scheme regulations prescribe the type of information that may be reasonably
required”?

It would be helpful to have guidance or legislation that demonstrates the role and
responsibilities of the Pension Board members. This could highlight that the fact they are
representatives of a particular group should not influence their execution of the role, with
guidance serving to clarify the key objectives that the Pension Boards are set to achieve.

Q8. Although not required by the Act, should Scheme regulations prescribe a minimum
number of employer and employee representatives?

Many Administering Authorities will have already experienced the arduous task of
appointing employer and or scheme member representatives to existing committees. This
can be a challenge due to :

Apathy amongst stakeholders in smaller funds;
Larger funds may have so many employers it is difficult to fairly restrict numbers.

The requirement for equal numbers of employer and member representatives, as
introduced by the Public Service Pensions Act, will lead to a continuing struggle. In short,
prescribing numbers in LGPS Regulations would create difficulties for Administering
Authorities. The concept of a proportionately sized board relative to the size of the local
fund may hold merit or a recommended minimum number with the need for a fund to
comply or explain a lower variance.

Q9. Should the new Scheme regulations require local pension boards to be a body
separate from the statutory committee or for it to be combined as a single body?

There remains a concern amongst Administering Authorities that local pension boards will
create another level of governance which isn’t strictly required should the Local Authority
have robust governance arrangements in place. If good governance arrangements are
already in place then there may not be the requirement for a separate local pension board.

Page 55



4

However, it is evident that it is difficult for a committee to self scrutinise and that an
independent view may be required, which could be achieved through the use of
professional advisors. Therefore, in this circumstance the statutory committee and the local
pension board could be the same body.

We recognise that making use of professional advisors as a solution raises a constitutional
issue in accordance with Section 101 and 102 of the Local Government Act which would
preclude non elected members from having voting rights in respect of financial matters
relating to the Administering Authority.

Furthermore, restrictions imposed by the Public Service Pension Act will make it challenging
for the scrutiny role to be carried out by an existing committee, specifically the requirement
for the Pension Board to have equal numbers of employer and member representatives.

Good governance is about transparency, accountability, understanding and managing risk
which is better suited by the separation of the two bodies with different members assigned
to the Scheme Manger Committee and to the Pension Board.

Administering Authorities could consider whether a local pension board can be set up to
serve a number of different funds on a regional basis as compliance issues should be the
same across all Funds. This model could provide a larger pool of knowledge and allow
greater potential for independent challenge and is in accordance with Hutton’s
recommendation for increased cooperation between LGPS funds.

However the potential of a limited number of pension boards providing the scrutiny
function for all existing Funds may lead to a particular vested interest exercising undue
influence.

Q10. Apart from what is required under the Act, what other elements of local pension
boards should be set out in the new Scheme regulations?

The less prescriptive the easier to administer as funds will need to consider their own
particular local circumstances in compliance with the key objectives. Flexibility should be
afforded to allow funds to develop their own individual approaches in establishing the board
taking account of national guidance and examples of best practice.

I reiterate that best practice, bench marking and guidance are preferable to another layer of
regulations which may contradict or remain silent on key aspects.

Q11. Apart from what is required under the Act, what other elements of local pension
boards should be left to local determination?

As it is important to enable each fund to meet the over arching requirements within the
Public Service Pension Act ,in relation to the Board there should be flexibility around the
range of individuals who could be appointed i.e. elected members, HR Officers, Solicitors
and in relation to tenure of appointees.

Page 56



5

Q12. Should the new Scheme regulations prevent any incumbent scheme member
representative being moved from a statutory committee to the local pension board (if the
committee and the board are not one and the same body)?

This may be too restrictive as there may be a genuinely good reason to allow movement
between the committee and the board as a particular member may have a particular skill
set appropriate to the alternative role. It would be imperative that following any movement
the Scheme Manager must ensure that an individual should not review a decision in which
they were directly involved. It should also be noted that any imposed restrictions may
prove detrimental and limit the availability of appropriate expertise.

Q13. Should the new Scheme regulations include a requirement for each local pension
board to publish an annual statement of its work and for this to be sent to the relevant
scheme manager, all scheme employers, the scheme advisory board and Pensions
Regulator?

For transparency purposes, a statement of the local pension board’s work should be
available to all stakeholders and could be published as an integral part of the Fund’s annual
report and accounts.

This could be viewed as mandatory to allow the DCLG to be aware of the local issues that
the boards are concerned with, and for the members and employers to understand the
developments within the scheme and rationale for decisions.

Q14. Apart from the training and qualification criteria that may be covered by the
Pensions Regulator in a code of practice, are there any specific issues that we should aim
to cover in the new Scheme regulations as well?

To ensure consistency amongst funds there should be a statutory requirement for funds to
adhere to the code of practice and requirements to be recorded within internal compliance
manuals. In addition a mandatory compliance statement could be recorded within the
annual report and accounts.

“Scheme Advisory Board”

Q15. Should Scheme regulations simply replicate the wording of the Act? If not, what
specific areas of work should the new Scheme regulations prescribe?

Initially it may prove beneficial to replicate the wording of the Act as regulatory provisions
may restrict the evolvement of the board. It may be advantageous not to overly prescribe
the provisions relating to this board in the first set of governance regulations allowing key
requirements to emerge at a later date. Amendments to the regulations can be readily
made at future dates.

Page 57



6

Q16. Should Scheme regulations include a general provision enabling the scheme advisory
board to advise the Secretary of State on the desirability of changes to the Scheme as and
when deemed necessary?

Although it is not the intention for the Scheme Advisory Board to replace the DCLG as
regulator of the LGPS, this proposal is an excellent opportunity to formalise the method in
which stakeholders can provide views to the government prior to consultation and suggest
areas that may require review.

The national board could provide a best practice and development forum allowing members
to offer their expertise when new regulations are proposed and tighten up the drafting of
regulations, avoiding unnecessary silences and errors.

Q17. Are there any specific areas of advice that Scheme regulations should
prohibit the scheme advisory board from giving?

No specific area should be excluded as long as membership of the board is appointed on a
transparent basis, with appropriate expertise in all regulatory areas and a fair
representation from all stakeholder groups.

Q18. What options (if any other, please describe) would be your preference for
establishing membership of the scheme advisory board?

The continuation of the membership of the shadow board would appear appropriate at the
implementation date subject to a regulatory review framework.

If it is the intention that the Scheme regulations should prescribe the sectors from which
members of the board are drawn this could be construed as too prescriptive, unless the
board had the authority to make appropriate appointments to seek specialist advice or
guidance.

In the likely event that interest to become a board member is low the regulatory bodies
should contribute in an advisory capacity until the necessary expertise is acquired.

Q19. Should Scheme regulations require the Secretary of State to approve any
recommendation made for the position of Chair?

On the basis that two of the main features of good governance are overview and
accountability it would seem appropriate that there is some form of overview by DCLG. This
could involve agreeing the Chair of the Scheme Advisory Board or being satisfied that the
terms of reference of the Board and its sub committees are appropriate.

The ratification of the individual to be Chair by the Secretary of State could be important in
confirming that there are no conflicts of interest relating to the individual and recognition
the Government formally recognise the authority of the Chair.

Page 58



7

Q20. Should Scheme regulations prescribe tenure of office? If so, what should the
maximum period of office be and should this also apply to the Chair of the board?

There should be fixed terms potentially 5 years of office to provide continuity of the scrutiny
process after which a member must stand for re election. This would allow members to
acquire a high level of expertise due to the esoteric nature of the regulations and
complexities of dealing with multiple asset classes.

There is an argument that the Chair’s tenure should be longer due to the critical role of the
Board in shaping the future of the LGPS as the Chair will be required to ensure that new
members of the board understand the nature of their responsibilities. In addition, the Chair
is instrumental in ensuring that the Board gains the respect of the key LGPS stakeholders at
a national level.

There could be an option for the Secretary of State to remove the individual from office due
to a loss of confidence as defined within the terms of reference and constitution of the
Board.

Q21. Should Scheme regulations make provision for board members, including the Chair,
to be removed in prescribed circumstances, for example, for failing to attend a minimum
number of meetings per annum? If so, who should be responsible for removing members
and in what circumstances (other than where a conflict of interest has arisen) should
removal be sought?

If members are failing to fulfil their duties it is necessary that they should be removed via
motions put forward by the other members of the board with an appropriate vote taken.
The appropriate circumstances should be prescribed by statutory provision but the detail
and process should be determined by the board within its constitutional rules.

Q22. Should Scheme regulations prescribe a minimum number of meetings in
each year? If so, how many?

Yes to ensure the effectiveness of this board., a quarterly timetable of meetings should be
prescribed per annum and the regulations should include provision for discretion to call
additional meetings when necessary.

Q23. Should Scheme regulations prescribe the number of attendees for the board to be
quorate? If so, how many or what percentage of the board’s membership should be
required to be in attendance?

Yes, two thirds of the board should be in attendance to be quorate as the decisions taken
may lead to a significant change of the Scheme affecting all stakeholders.

Page 59



8

Q24. Rather than make specific provision in Scheme regulations, should the matters
discussed at Q19 to Q23 be left as matters for the scheme advisory board itself to consider
and determine?

The regulations should provide the broad outline as required by the Act with additional
provisions around tenure. If the DCLG is given the authority to oversee the board then all
other areas could be matters for the board as long as a fair and transparent approach is
undertaken.

Q25. Should the scheme advisory board be funded by a voluntary subscription or
mandatory levy on all Scheme pension fund authorities?

Ensuring the Board is appropriately financed is critical to its success consequently, a
mandatory levy rather than a voluntary subscription would be fairer and deliver stability
allowing the board to fulfil its responsibilities. As it is expected that part of its role is to
provide guidance and examples of best practice this could reduce the development work
locally delivering efficiencies across all funds.

Q26. What would be your preferred manner of legal constitution of the scheme advisory
board and how should Scheme regulations deal with the issue of personal liability
protection for board members?

We do not have anything to contribute on this matter.

Conclusion

Merseyside Pension Fund acknowledges the necessity to improve governance standards and
deliver consistency throughout all funds, although it would be desirable that the regulations
are not too prescriptive to allow for the differences between LGPS funds.

However we are concerned that the establishment of local pension boards will add further
cost and complexity at a time when we are focussing on cost reductions and simplification
of processes. We welcome measures to ensure high standards of governance across the
whole of the LGPS but believe there are simpler and better ways of achieving this objective.

Yours sincerely

Principal Pension Officer

Page 60



Councillor Pensions
Department for Communities & Local Government
Zone 5/F5 Eland House
Bressenden Place
London
SW1E 5DU

TAXPAYER-FUNDED PENSIONS FOR COUNCILLORS 
CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

Wirral Council is responsible for the administration of the Merseyside Pension Fund which is
part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The Merseyside Pension Fund deals
with the LGPS pension administration and investments on behalf of the 5 Merseyside District
Councils, and over 130 other employers on Merseyside and elsewhere throughout the UK.

I refer to the formal consultation on ‘Taxpayer funded pensions for councillors and other
elected local office holders’ launched in April 2013. This response is made solely in the
Fund’s role as the administrator of the LGPS; consequently it is of a ‘technical nature’ in
regards the options presented within the consultation.

As the provision of Councillor Pensions is discretionary within the LGPS, the Fund has
ensured that each council has been made aware of this consultation in order for them to
consider their preferred option and respond accordingly. Currently four of the councils
within Merseyside offer their Councillors access to the LGPS.

MERSEYSIDE MEMBERSHIP STATISTICS

Active Contributors 64

Deferred Pensions 17

Pensions in Payment 13

Survivor/Dependants Pensions 3

OPTION 1 NO ACCESS TO THE LGPS FROM APRIL 2014

In the event of the Councillors’ pension scheme becoming ‘closed’ on 31 March 2014, Funds
will require clear guidance and communication material as to the treatment of existing
contributors. A national consistent message should be advised across Funds on how to treat
contributing members; for instance, should benefits come into payment automatically for
those members who are of an eligible age to receive a pension but remain in elected office?

   

 Direct Line: 0151 242-1390 

Please ask for: Yvonne Caddock 

Date:  3 July 2013 

Page 61



2

Recent policy initiatives have encouraged the public to commit to pension savings and take
personal responsibility towards providing for retirement. Option 1, would seem contrary to
the policy intent of these Government initiatives.

OPTION 2 ‘FRONT BENCH’ COUNCILLORS ONLY

It has been clear in political statements and also within related correspondence that the
government considers local politicians operating within ‘two tiers’. Specifically, the
consultation document references elected Mayors and elected leaders.

From a technical standpoint, the Fund would question the equity of such an arrangement
and would anticipate legal challenges to any restrictions to any specific description of a
‘Front Bench’ Councillor.

Given the transitory nature of some political appointments, a real consideration for scheme
administration is the potential increase in trivial pension accruals; as members become
eligible and then ineligible for access.

The Fund would also question the affordability of continuing to provide pension provision to
such a small cohort of potential members. If this option did become the favoured way
forward, it would be sensible to move the ‘qualifying’ members into the main LGPS 2014
scheme with the necessary regulatory arrangements.

The continuation of a separate Councillor scheme on a massively reduced active
membership would be unviable.

OPTION 3 NO CHANGE [ACCESS PROVIDED ON CONTINUING BASIS]

In the event of councillors retaining their right to remain as members of the LGPS, the Fund
consider it essential that the regulations governing their entitlements mirror the benefit
structure and definitions as prescribed by the LGPS 2014 Regulations.

In order to protect accrued rights up to April 2014 it is necessary for the transitional
regulations to ensure that the current scheme provisions are preserved in respect of the
current CARE variant to the LGPS.

Although councillors are not by definition ‘employed workers’, the time commitment
towards civic duties can exceed that of part time employees within the same employing
authority. In addition, allowances received by Councillors are taxable by the Government as
earnings via the Pay As You Earn (PAYE) system.

In essence, this will simplify administration of Councillors' pensions and avoid further
complexity of administering two Career Average benefit structures.

Given the small number of Councillor Members in relation to the overall employing
authority membership, their inclusion into the main Scheme would have a marginal effect
on funding positions and employer contribution rates. Furthermore, for simplicity of both
administration and communication the Fund would also propose the use of the same
member contribution bands as the main Scheme.

Page 62



3

CONCLUSION

The Fund’s primary objective is to provide valuable pension savings to people providing local
public services and would advocate the continuation of Councillor participation in the LGPS.

Councillor participation should be included within the general scope of the 2014 Scheme,
including the same member contribution rate bandings – thus bring a closure to the current
separate Councillors’ scheme. Participation should also be maintained as a ‘discretion’ of
the employing authority in recognition of the Localism agenda.

Yours sincerely

Yvonne Caddock

Principal Pensions Officer

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
for you, for now, for the future 

THE LGPS IS CHANGING FROM 1 APRIL 2014 
 
If you are paying into the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), you’ll automatically 
be in the new scheme from 1 April 2014. If you’ve retired or left before then, there’s no 
change to your pension. 
 
Here is how the new scheme works 
 
There’s increased flexibility around when you can leave and take your pension  
 
From April 2014 you can choose to leave and draw your pension anytime from age 55 – 
but the longer you work the more your pension will be.  
 
Your pension will be reduced if you choose to retire before your normal pension age 
and increased if you retire later.  
 
Normal pension age for your new scheme pension won’t be fixed at 65 as in the current 
scheme, it will be the same as your state pension age – with 65 as the earliest age.  
 
As your state pension age increases, so will your LGPS pension age. To find out your 
state pension age – have a look at www.gov.uk/calculate-state-pension. 
 
Your pension builds up in a new way from April 2014 

 
For each year in the new scheme you build up a pension based on your pay in that year.  

 
Every year you get a pension that’s equal to a 49th of your pay added into your 
pension account 

 
PLUS 
 
Inflation increases, so your pension account keeps up with the cost of living. 

 
And it won’t cost more for most people  
 
Whilst the average cost for employees will still be 6.5% of pay, from April 2014 the highest 
paid will pay more. If you are part time it could cost you less - your contribution rate will be 
based on your part time pay instead of, as now, the full time equivalent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 65



 

 

If you’re worried you can’t afford it – think again 
 
If you pay tax you get tax relief on your contributions. 
 
And the new scheme gives you more flexibility – it has a new 50/50 option.  
 
For times when things are difficult, you can choose to pay half contributions and, during 
that time, add half pension into your account. But you still keep the full value of your life 
and ill health cover. 
 
Remember  
 
A pension isn’t only about your future.  
 
As a member of the LGPS you still get valuable life cover, with a lump sum of 3 years 
pay if you die in service, cover for your family, with pensions for your dependents if you 
die, and ill health cover for you.   
 
And you can still pay more to buy extra pension.    
 
It’s important you know that all of your benefits built up in the scheme to 31 March 
2014 are protected. They will still be based on your final salary on leaving and the 
normal pension age in the current scheme. 
 

Your pension is changing, becoming more flexible & offering you more choice.   
 
To find out more 
 
More information on the changes, a short video and examples can be found on 
www.lgps2014.org   
 
More detailed information will become available in the run up to April 2014.  
 

June 2013 
 

 

Disclaimer 
 
This is a brief leaflet about the changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme for 
employees in England or Wales from 1 April 2014 and reflects the proposed changes at 
the time of publication in June 2013. In the event of any dispute over your pension benefits 
the appropriate legislation will prevail. This leaflet does not provide any contractual or 
statutory rights and does not override any existing legislation.  

Page 66



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

SUBJECT: FUTURE STRUCTURE OF THE LGPS – 

CALL FOR EVIDENCE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report updates Members with the latest developments relating to the proposed 
changes to the structure of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and 
seeks approval for a proposed response to the DCLG’s call for evidence. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

Call for evidence on the future structure of the LGPS 
 

2.1 In 2010, the Government commissioned Lord Hutton to chair the Independent Public 
Service Pensions Commission. The purpose of the Commission was to review public 
service pensions and to make recommendations on how they could be made 
sustainable and affordable in the long term, while being fair to both taxpayers and 
public sector workers.  Lord Hutton’s final report was published on 10 March 2011. 
Among its recommendations, the report made clear that the benefits of co-operative 
working between local government pension scheme funds and achieving 
administration efficiencies more generally should be investigated further.  The Local 
Government Pension Scheme currently costs local taxpayers £6billion a year in 
employer contributions. 

 
2.2 On 16 May 2013, the LGA and DCLG held a roundtable event on the potential for 

increased co-operation within the Local Government Pension Scheme, including the 
possibility of structural change to the current 89 funds. 25 attendees represented 
administering authorities, employers, trade unions, the actuarial profession and 
academia. 

 
The roundtable aimed to bring objectivity and transparency to the subject through 
open debate. There was a full discussion of the possible aims of reform and the 
potential benefits of structural change, together with the further work needed to 
provide robust evidence to support emerging options. The meeting focused on the 
issues to be addressed by reform rather than the detailed arguments for any of the 
potential ways forward that have been proposed. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



 
The roundtable heard about the projects being undertaken to look at the options for 
structural reform of the Scheme in London and Wales and considered the range and 
relative priorities of the desired outcomes of reform, the data requirements for 
determining a start point and target and the next steps for delivering those 
outcomes. 
 

2.3 On 22 May at the National Association of Pension Funds’ local authority conference, 
the Local Government Minister Brandon Lewis said: 
 
I am determined that we make progress and make it as quickly as reasonably 
possible. I can therefore announce this morning, that we will consult later in the year 
on a number of broad principles for change. This will be your opportunity to tell us 
what reforms could be made to both help improve your investment performance and 
reduce your fund management costs. 
 
The consultation will not set out some pre-determined solution to what is 
undoubtedly a complex and contentious issue. I am neither ruling anything in nor 
ruling anything out at this stage. However, the clear message from me this morning 
is that I am not wedded to the existing number of 89 funds in England and Wales. If 
it takes a smaller number of funds to improve the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of 
the scheme, I shall not shy away from pursuing that goal. 
 
I have talked a fair amount about the need for robust data to inform decisions. I am 
therefore working with the LGA and others to launch a call for evidence, which will 
both inform our consultation and help all involved formulate their views in response 
to the consultation. 

 
2.4 The call for evidence 
 

At the roundtable, the following high level and secondary objectives for structural 
reform were proposed: 
 
High level objectives 
 
1. Dealing with deficits 
2. Improving investment returns 
 
Secondary objectives 
 
1. To reduce investment fees 
2. To improve the flexibility of investment strategies 
3. To provide for greater investment in infrastructure 
4. To improve the cost effectiveness of administration 
5. To provide access to higher quality staffing resources 
6. To provide more in-house investment resource 

 
2.5 The Fund’s response to this call for evidence is attached at appendix 1.  The 
 response addresses the five questions incorporated in the the DCLG’s paper. 
 

The response highlights the following considerations: 

Page 68



 
• The current governance arrangements within the LGPS where Pensions 

Committees are principally comprised of locally elected councillors already 
provide a high level of accountability to local tax payers and interested 
parties.  

 
• The Fund believes that the great majority of efficiencies and cost savings 

sought will be realised through collaboration and joint working without the 
need for the formal merger of local government pension schemes.  

 
• With regard to investment performance, there is little evidence to suggest 

that a larger fund size corresponds to better performance.   
 

• Existing data suggests that pension funds need a minimum critical mass for a 
specialist, in-house investment resource to be viable.   

 
• Larger funds have more cost effective administration but focusing purely on 

costs, risks overlooking some aspects of quality that are less obvious but 
valuable.   

 
• Investments rather than administration is far more significant in terms of 

overall impact on cost.  A specialist, in-house resource provides for flexibility 
of investment strategies and access to higher quality staffing resources.  

 
• Larger funds will generally pay lower investment fees but the rate of 

reduction in fees decreases relative to increasing scale.  
 
• A focus on investment fees in absolute terms is misguided.   Investment fees 

should be assessed relative to the outperformance achieved. 
 

• For there to be confidence in the conclusions drawn from any analysis of cost 
and performance data, it is imperative that the basis of the preparation of 
that data is more prescriptive than at present, and audited, to avoid 
ambiguities and ensure objectivity. 

 
2.6 The closing date for this consultation is 27 September 2013. 
 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 With pension funds working to implement the 2014 Scheme, there is a risk that this 
initiative will put further strain on already limited resources. 

 
3.2 The analysis and assessment is undertaken on incomplete and misleading 

information leading to unnecessary reforms. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

Page 69



5.1 The Fund has liaised with other local authority funds in the preparation and 
compliation of data for this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are none arising directly from this report.  Any reform of the LGPS has 
potentially significant financial implications. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 The reforms to the LGPS have already been assessed by Government with regard 

to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note the report and approve the response to the call for evidence. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 There is a requirement for Members of the Pension Committee to be kept up to date 
with legislative developments to carry out their decision making role in order to 
enable them to make informed decisions. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Wallach 
  Head of Pension Fund 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1309 
 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 
 

1 Draft MPF submission to DCLG call for evidence on reform of the LGPS. 
 

REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Page 70



Council Meeting  Date 

None 

 

 

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



Call for evidence on the future structure of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme – Response on behalf of Merseyside Pension Scheme. 
 
Merseyside Pension Fund provides the Local Government Pension Scheme for 
the Merseyside region, delivering pension administration, investments and 
accounting on behalf of the 5 Merseyside District Councils and over 130 other 
employers. 
 
The Fund has over 123,000 scheme members and is responsible for the 
investment and accounting for a pension fund of £5.7 billion. 
 
Over the years, the Fund has developed its collaborative working to include 
pensions administration services for the Fire-fighters’ scheme, hosting the 
national 2014 Reform website on behalf of the LGA/trade unions and leading the 
joint procurement of actuarial services on behalf of neighbouring funds.   
 
We have set up a joint initiative with Cheshire Pension Fund to work together on 
implementing the 2014 reforms with a view to standardising systems, policies 
and procedures.  This will facilitate the development of future joint working 
arrangements.   
 
The Fund believes that the great majority of efficiencies and cost savings sought 
will be realised through collaboration and joint working without the need for the 
formal merger of local government pension schemes.  
 
I should be grateful if you would consider the following comments in relation to 
the call for evidence on the future structure of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
Question 1 – How can the Local Government Pension Scheme best 
achieve a high level of accountability to local taxpayers and other 
interested parties – including through the availability of transparent 
and comparable data on costs and income - while adapting to become 
more efficient and to promote stronger investment performance. 
 
The current governance arrangements within the LGPS where Pensions 
Committees are principally comprised of locally elected councillors already 
provide a high level of accountability to local tax payers and interested parties.  
Governance compliance statements, prepared by LGPS funds, confirm that the 
great majority provide detailed information on performance and activities 
through annual reports and other publications.  The governance changes 
proposed as a consequence of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 will only 
strengthen this. 
 

Page 73



These governance arrangements ensure that, within the LGPS, there is a great 
deal of information publicly available.  However, it is fair to say that the lack of 
consensus on the basis of the preparation of that information makes 
comparisons more difficult.  In our answer to question 5, we suggest that, for 
there to be confidence in the conclusions drawn from any analysis of the data, it 
is imperative that the basis of the preparation of that data is more prescriptive 
than at present, and audited, to avoid ambiguities and ensure objectivity. 
 
CIPFA already collates information from a number of funds who participate 
voluntarily in the benchmarking of administration costs.  It would seem sensible 
if CIPFA, the recognised industry body, was used to set out a clear basis for the 
preparation, calculation and submission of administration and investment costs, 
and to collate and analyse the data.   
 
Efficiencies are already flowing from collaborative working between funds.  This 
was recognised by Lord Hutton in his eponymous report – “Central and local 
government should closely monitor the benefits associated with the current co-
operative projects within the LGPS, with a view to encouraging the extension of 
this approach, if appropriate, across all local authorities.” 
 
We suggest that collaborative working and shared services are the quickest and 
simplest means of furthering efficiencies in the LGPS.  We expand on this in our 
answer to question 3. 
 
With regard to investment performance, there is little evidence to suggest that a 
larger fund size corresponds to better performance.  However, the data suggests 
that the relative performance of larger funds is less volatile which may be an 
advantage in managing contribution rates as local government funds mature.  
 
Academic research suggests that investment performance derives more from 
asset allocation than stock selection.  Flexible investment strategies are required 
if asset allocation is to be managed effectively and funds with an in-house 
capability are better placed (refer question 4).   
 
Question 2 – Are the high level objectives listed above those we should 
be focussing on and why? If not, what objectives should be the focus 
of reform and why? How should success against these objectives be 
measured? 
 
The high level objectives seem appropriate.  Although linked, the former is more 
challenging than the latter as deficits have arisen through subsequent events; 
principally improvements in longevity and low bond yields exacerbated by QE.  
Recent reforms to the Scheme have taken action to manage deficits as a future 
problem but have done very little to address accrued deficits.   The only 

Page 74



modestly helpful action was the move from RPI to CPI and it is difficult to see 
any other acceptable actions in a similar vein.  A rise in bond yields will go a 
considerable way to resolving this issue and recent market moves in bond yields 
suggest some normailisation is occuring but it is only likely to play out over the 
long term – something that pension funds can sustain. 
 
Question 3 – What options for reform would best meet the high level 
objectives and why? 
 
In this report, Lord Hutton recognised the benefits that were accruing from the 
collaborative working of local government pensions schemes. “Central and local 
government should closely monitor the benefits associated with the current co-
operative projects within the LGPS, with a view to encouraging the extension of 
this approach, if appropriate, across all local authorities.” 
 
The pressure on public finances means that funds are identifying and realising 
savings and efficiencies.  The collation and publication of comparable data on 
fund performance will drive that further (see detail in question 5).   
 
Austerity in local government is accelerating this trend in several areas; 
procurement (framework agreements), joint working (Westminster, 
Hammersmith & Fulham and Kensington, Northamptonshire/Cambridgshire) and 
related initiatives (Lancashire/Cumbria). 
 
As one of Wirral’s transformation projects, the council is working through plans 
to share key services with its neighbouring council Cheshire West and Chester.  
In conjunction with this, Merseyside Pension Fund has set up a joint initiative 
with Cheshire Pension Fund to work together on implementing the 2014 reforms 
with a view to standardising systems, policies and procedures.  This will facilitate 
the development of future joint working arrangements.   
 
Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxfordsire pension funds are also working in a 
similar direction. 
 
Question 4 – To what extent would the options you have proposed 
under question 3 meet any or all of the secondary objectives? Are there 
any other secondary objectives that should be included and why? 
 
 
All the secondary objectives would be achieved to a greater extent.  Looking at 
the objectives, the following points should be made: 
 

• Existing data suggests that pension funds need a minimum critical mass 
for a specialist, in-house investment resource to be viable.   

Page 75



• Larger funds have more cost effective administration (objectives 4 and 5)   
• Investments rather than administration is far more significant in terms of 

overall impact on cost.  A specialist, in-house resource provides for 
flexibility of investment strategies, access to higher quality staffing 
resources, meeting objectives 2, 5 and 6.  

• Larger funds will generally pay lower fees but the rate of reduction in 
investment fees decreases relative to increasing scale.   

• A focus on investment fees in absolute terms is misguided.   Investment 
fees should be assessed relative to the outperformance achieved.    To 
illustrate this point: 

 
1. A fund could invest passively with an external manager, pay very 

low investment management costs and match its strategic 
benchmark. 

2. A fund could be internally managed (either actively or passively), 
have low investment management costs but underperform its 
strategic benchmark. 

3. A fund could invest actively with external managers, have higher 
investment management costs but outperform its strategic 
benchmark.   

 
Providing the scale of outperformance exceeds the costs incurred, 
outperformance with higher costs provides better value than investment 
performance that is in-line or below its benchmark with lower costs.  
 
As pension funds have bespoke benchmarks derived from the actuary’s 
assessment of their particular circumstances, peformance should be assessed 
relative to benchmark not in absolute terms as has been the tendency.  
Additionally, looking at absolute returns takes no account of the risk incurred.  
Risk adjusted returns are a widely used industry standard of performance 
assessment. 
 
Objective 3 is unlikely to be influenced to any significant extent by the size of 
funds.  Larger funds have invested in infrastructure for some time and the lower 
levels of allocation are more reflective of the assessment of the investment 
opportunity relative to other assets than a factor of fund size. 
 
 
Question 5 – What data is required in order to better assess the current 
position of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the individual 
Scheme fund authorities and the options proposed under this call for 
evidence? How could such data be best produced, collated and 
analysed? 
 

Page 76



 
As indicated in question 1, within the LGPS, there is a great deal of information 
publicly available, however, it is fair to say that the lack of consensus on the 
basis of the preparation of those figures makes comparisons challenging. 
 
For there to be confidence in the conclusions drawn from any analysis of the 
data, it is imperative that the basis of the preparation of that data is more 
prescriptive than at present, and audited to avoid ambiguities. 
 
CIPFA already collates information from a number of funds who participate 
voluntarily in the benchmarking of administration costs.  It would seem sensible 
if CIPFA was used to set out a clear basis for the preparation and submission of 
administration and investment costs, collate and analyse the data.   
 
In relation to pensions administration, granular information on the costs of the 
various functions within a pension fund would help to identify areas of efficiency 
and good practice.  The significant areas of administration and associated costs 
could be categorized as follows; 
 

• Pension Administration Systems 
• Benefit Calculations 
• Transfer Calculations 
• Pensioner Payroll 
• Member Maintenance and reconciliation of contribution returns 
• Communications 

 
Focusing purely on costs, risks overlooking some aspects of quality that are less 
obvious but valuable.  The following are examples of activities that will increase 
administration costs but will have cost and efficiency benefits that will not show 
up immediately:  

• a data cleansing exercise will improve actuarial calculations and reduce 
the likelihood of incorrect pension payments 

• an analysis of longevity of scheme members may reduce contribution 
rates 

• the active management of empoyers with weak covenants in relation to 
bonds, guarantees and other risk reducing activities       

 
Administration costs 
 
A number of voluntary initiatives have been ongoing for a number of years; one 
of the most widely used being the CIPFA benchmarking study of administration 
costs.  However, as the numbers are not audited, participants lack confidence in 
their robustness. 
 

Page 77



Although SF3 returns are audited and form part of pension funds’ annual 
accounts, there are some inconsistencies in the data nonetheless due to: 

• internal/external management of funds 
• different auditing regimes 
• the allocation of costs between investments, administration and the fund 
• greater visibility of Metropolitan funds relative to the more integrated non-

Metropolitan funds to the allocation of central charges by administering 
authorities. 

 
Investment costs 
 
As indicated in question 4, it is necessary that they are analysed firstly as a 
percentage of AUM and secondly that performance is analysed on a relative 
rather than an absolute basis.  The cost per member basis derived from the SF3 
return is meaningless.   
 
To illustrate this, MPF has undertaken an analysis of the investment performance 
of other Met funds and comparable neighbouring funds over a three year period.  
An extract of the analysis, reproduced below, shows the pitfalls of limiting 
analysis to absolute rather than relative returns.  A pension fund may have low 
investment costs but if its investment performance does not match its 
benchmark, the value foregone is generally far greater than the benefit of the 
lower costs.  It would be reasonable to undertake this analysis over other, longer 
time periods and update it for 2013 now the data is available, to allow further 
comparison.     
 
The attached spreadsheet provides further detail on the underlying data (which 
has been derived from public sources) and the basis of calculations.  We are 
willing to provide further information as required. 
 

Fund Size Total 
administration cost 

(£ 000)

Total Cost Per 
AUM

Total Net Cost 
AUM

Total Net Costs £ Total Net cost 
per member

Total 
administration 

cost per scheme 
member (£)

Merseyside Pension Fund £5,200,000,000 £15,143,000 0.29% 0.09% £4,743,000 £38.70 123.55
Cumbria £1,466,418,000 £4,489,000 0.31% 0.61% £8,888,254 £204.35 103.20
Cheshire £2,920,443,000 £11,125,000 0.38% -2.42% -£70,647,404 -£924.78 145.63
Lancashire £4,380,000,000 £12,179,000 0.28% 1.48% £64,739,000 £470.50 88.51
LPFA £4,214,161,000 £27,143,000 0.64% 1.24% £52,427,966 £684.99 354.63
South Yorkshire £4,687,897,000 £5,168,000 0.11% 1.11% £52,046,970 £402.86 40.00
Tameside £11,012,410,000 £13,163,000 0.12% 0.32% £35,187,820 £130.34 48.76
Tyne & Wear Superannuation Fund £4,841,462,000 £12,062,000 0.25% 0.45% £21,744,924 £191.09 106.00
West Midlands Pension Fund £8,900,000,000 £20,979,000 0.24% 1.24% £109,979,000 £431.00 82.21
West Yorkshire Superannuation Fund £8,700,000,000 £6,578,000 0.08% 0.38% £32,678,000 £140.73 28.33

Total or Average £56,322,791,000 £128,029,000 0.23% 0.55% £311,787,530 £214.00 £87.88

Volatility / Standard Deviation 0.16% 1.11% £47,015,813 £434.26 £93.02

Notes for sources of data
All data on scheme members and investment and adminstration costs taken from 2012 SF3 release
Data on Fund size, investment targets and investment performance taken from annual reports and Statement of Investment Principles investment performacne is 3 years to 2012
Exceptions and assumptions : where  there is no published target or the target is to exceed specific benchmark a figure of 0.1% is used West Mids is targeted alpha, from their Annual Report

 

Page 78



 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: MEDIUM TERM ASSET ALLOCATION 

IMPLEMENTATION OF FRAMEWORK 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR  

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on progress on the 
implementation of a framework for active management of medium term asset 

allocation. 
 

1.2 Appendices 1 and 2 to the report contain exempt information. This is by virtue 
of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, 

i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Members will be aware that on 24th June 2013, Pensions Committee approved 
a framework for active management of medium term asset allocation including 
the following key aspects: 

 
• The setting up of a MTTA panel as outlined in the appendix 

 
• The appointment of an overlay manager subject to completion of due diligence 

work by Aon Hewitt (This will be delegated to officers and reported to 
Committee in September). 

 
• The provision of additional services from Aon Hewitt as MTAA advisors under 

their existing contract. 
 
2.2 Since the Pensions Committee and following advice from Aon Hewitt, 

BlackRock have been appointed as the Overlay Manager. 
 
2.3 Officers have met with BlackRock to discuss in more detail how the overlay 

manager role will fit into the framework and how the mandate will be managed 
on a day to day basis. 

 
2.4 Officers have set a target timetable for implementation of the framework as 

detailed in the appendix to this report. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 79



 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The appendices include consideration of risks related to implementation of 
active management of medium term asset allocation. The control of risks is a 
key part of the due diligence. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 The appendices include consideration of options for implementation of active 
management of medium term asset allocation. 

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The aim of this exercise is to improve the overall returns and risk adjusted 
returns of Merseyside Pension Fund and therefore will have beneficial financial 
implications. The targeted return from medium term asset allocation is 0.25% of 
the Fund which at present would potentially improve returns by approximately 
£15m per annum. 

 
7.2 The costs of the overlay manager are set out in the exempt appendix and will 

be withdrawn from the pooled vehicle directly on a quarterly basis. 
 
7.2 There are no Staffing or IT implications of this report. 
 
7.3 To date consultancy fees of £25,000 have been incurred in the due diligence on 

this project and the exempt appendix provides an estimate of on-going costs 
per annum for the MTAA consultant as a variance to the Aon Hewitt contract 
under agreed draw down rates. 

 

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental 
issues arising from this report. 

 
 

Page 80



 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Pensions Committee notes the report on progress to date on the 
implementation of the framework for active management of medium term asset 
allocation 

 
12.2 Subject to approval, the Compliance Manual will be amended to reflect the 

MTAA framework. 
 
12.3 That Pensions Committee notes the additional consultancy fees paid to Aon 

Hewitt for conducting due diligence on the recommended arrangements.  
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 The approval of investment strategy by Pensions Committee forms part of the 
governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund.  

 
13.2 Officers believe that the medium term asset allocation framework will enhance 

the returns of the fund primarily though management of risk. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall 
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  0151 242 1310 
  paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 Internal Report setting out governance framework and implementation of 

active management of medium term asset allocation. (Revised as at 30th 
August 2013) 

 
Appendix 2  Report “Overlay manager review” by Aon 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

No reference material used in the production of this report. 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee : Medium Term Asset 

Allocation 

Pensions Committee : IMWP minutes 

 

24 June 2013 

 

25 March 2013 

 

Page 81



 
 

Page 82



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: IT COSTS - 2014 REFORM 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the IT costs related to updating the pension 
administration computer system, in order to meet the legislative changes of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in April 2014. 

 
1.2 The report also covers the current Electronic Document Management and Workflow 

system, with the request to align procurement arrangements with the contractual 
renewal date for the Pensions Administration and Pensioner Payroll system. 

 
1.3 An exempt report on the agenda, setting out the IT costs, contains exempt 

information.  This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 Pensions Administration & Pensioner Payroll IT System 

2.1 During 2008, an open and competitive procurement exercise took place for a 
replacement Pensions Administration & Pensioner Payroll system. Pensions 
Committee approved the procurement of the Altair system from Heywood on 14 
January 2009, the contract commenced 1 January 2010.  

 
2.2 Heywood’s were the existing software provider and the initial contract was for five 

years, with the option for a two year extension. 
 
2.3 Pensions committee on 18 September 2012 approved the option to extend the 

contract with Heywood for a further two years (from December 2014 to December 
2016).  

 
2.4 Heywood is currently recognised (by market share) as the main provider of pension 

administration systems to LGPS Funds. Its Local Authority customers are organised 
into a formal user group entitled CLASS.  The objective of the CLASS group is to 

Agenda Item 9

Page 83



facilitate best value for the members in terms of software and services provision 
from the partner supplier, Heywood. 

 
2.5 Members will be aware that the LGPS is facing significant regulatory change from 

April 2014.  To meet these requirements, Heywood are required to make a 
significant investment in developing the product to accommodate Career Average 
benefits and to enhance current calculations in order to facilitate the transitional 
protections for existing members of the scheme. 

 
2.6 The cost of development is to be shared amongst the CLASS Group members with 

the additional licence fee being paid over two financial years. 
 
2.7 The required developments will also incur an additional ongoing software 

maintenance fee; this is an additional annual cost for the duration of the contract. 
 
 Electronic Document Management & Workflow IT System 
 
2.8 The current electronic document management and workflow system supplied by 

Civica (previously known as Comino) was originally implemented by the Pension 
Fund in 1997. The system is referred to as Pensions5. 

 
2.9 Pensions5 is embedded as a core IT system at the Fund and supports the 

administration function alongside the Altair system.  In addition, to holding member 
documents the Pensions5 system also holds general documents related to Fund 
management e.g. historic and current legislation. 

 
2.10 The Fund processes for dealing with members are delivered within Pensions5. As 

such, the delivery of LGPS 2014 will require a full review and modification of the 
existing workflow processes. 

 
2.11 The current contract arrangement for the Pensions5 system is on an annual renewal 

basis with Civica. 
 
2.12 Civica has a full Pensions Administration and Pensioner Payroll solution titled 

‘Universal Pensions Management’ (UPM). This software has rapidly matured in 
recent years and is increasingly being adopted by LGPS Funds, most recently by 
West Yorkshire Pension Fund. UPM is based on the same technology as the 
Pensions5 system. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The ongoing provision of both IT systems is critical to the core operations of the 
Fund. Without these systems the ability to maintain member records and pay 
pensions is fundamentally compromised. 

 
3.2 The software enhancements to the Altair system are necessary to successfully meet 

the regulatory requirements and statutory responsibility of the Fund from April 2014. 
 
3.3 The current IT systems are known to the staff of the Fund and there is considerable 

knowledge investment in the existing processes and user training.  There is less 
operational risk to the Fund in enhancing and modifying existing embedded 

Page 84



processes and systems.  Staff resources are not available to implement any new IT 
systems. 

 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report.  
  

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

 
7.1 The additional development costs, related expenses and ongoing costs are set out 

in the exempt appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 

No, because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 

Page 85



 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Members note the additional costs required to update the Altair IT System for the 
new regulations from April 2014. 

 
12.2 Members to agree that the current annual renewal arrangement for Pensions5 

continues until December 2016, in order to align procurement arrangements with the 
contractual renewal date for the Altair system. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Recommendation 12.1 is made in recognition of the statutory duties of the 
administering authority to comply with the requirements of legislation.  

 
13.2 Recommendation 12.2 is made with the expectation of a future procurement process 

for a single integrated IT solution – delivering pension administration, payroll, 
document management and workflow management. 

 
It will give time for other competitors to emerge following the LGPS 2014 reforms 
which may improve the procurement outcome. Officers judge that this is the best 
option in terms of risk control and value for money.  

 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Guy Hayton 
  Operations Manager 
 
  Telephone:  0151 242 1361 
  email:  guyhayton@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

ALTAIR IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE 

PENSIONS5 – GENERAL FILING 

ALTAIR IT HARDWARE 

 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

20 MARCH 2012 

27 SEPEMBER 2010 

 

Page 86



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the arrangements for the annual Employers’ 
Conference to be held on Thursday 28 November 2013. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The 2013 conference will be held at Aintree Racecourse on Thursday 28 November. 
 
2.2 In addition to the annual reports on investment performance and the administration 

of the Pension Fund over the previous year, a presentation will be given by Paul 
Middleman from Mercer, the Fund Actuary summarising the triennial valuation. 
 

2.3 The draft programme commences with Coffee and Registration at 9.30am, with a 
start time of 10am. There will be an open forum for questions and an anticipated 
finish time of 1.30pm. Lunch will be provided for delegates. 
 

2.4 Members are invited to attend the Conference and further details will be circulated to 
all Members of this Committee as soon as arrangements are finalised. 

 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none rising directly from this report.  
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 An online survey was taken of previous delegates in 2012 and 92% rated Aintree 
Racecourse as an excellent or very good venue.  The location, public transport links 
and overall quality of Aintree Racecourse was commended.  

 
5.2 Feedback in previous years has supported the choice of Aintree Racecourse as 

being a venue that provides good facilities and free car parking. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 87



  
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The cost of holding the Conference is estimated at £5,000; provision for which is 
contained within the budget. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 

Yes - Access for delegates with limited mobility has been assessed; appropriate 
emergency arrangements in place.  A hearing loop and relay screens will be 
provided for people with sensory impairments. 

 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Members note the report. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The value of holding an annual conference was recognised following the successful 
re-introduction of this event in November 1997. 

 
13.2 Feedback from attendees has consistently demonstrated the value that employers 

place in the opportunity to hear presentations on topical issues and receive reports 
on current Fund activity and performance. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 

Page 88



APPENDICES 
 

 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

19 SEPTEMBER 2011 

27 SEPTEMBER 2010 

 

 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: LGPS TRUSTEE ‘FUNDAMENTALS’ 

TRAINING   

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends the Committee to approve participation by Members in the 
LGPS Trustee Training ‘Fundamentals Xll’ organised by the Local Government 
Pensions Committee. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The fundamentals course is run on an annual basis and provides an insight to LGPS 
‘trusteeship’ for newly elected Committee members whilst also serving as an 
update/refresher course for longer-serving members.  The course is of three days 
duration, spread over a number of months at three locations around the UK.  As 
identical material is delivered at each location, it is possible to attend the course by 
visiting different locations should delegates’ diaries not allow attendance on all three 
days at a particular location. 

 
2.2 Fundamentals is a bespoke LGPS training course predominately aimed at elected 

members serving on pension committees/panel, and has been attended by over 950 
delegates since 2002.  The 2013 event incorporates all legislative changes made to the 
LGPS since last year’s event and all sections are refreshed to keep them up-to-date, 
relevant and interesting. 

 
2.3 The aim of the LGPC remains unaltered; that is to deliver a single training course 

covering all aspects of the Scheme, including both ‘Benefits’ and ‘Fund’ administration, 
as well as ‘Investments’ so that attendees can demonstrate compliance with the first of 
the six CIPFA principles and receive educational material in line with CIPFA’s Pensions 
Knowledge and Skills Framework. 

 
2.4 Attendance is likely to be of most benefit to newer members of Committee providing a 

useful grounding in all aspects of local government pensions.  Appendix 1 sets out the 
programme in full. 

Agenda Item 11

Page 91



 
2.5 Dates and venues: 
 

Leeds Day 1 29 October 
 Day 2 12 November 
 Day 3 05 December 
   

Cardiff Day 1 17 October 
 Day 2 21 November 
 Day 3 17 December 
   

London Day 1 23 October 
 Day 2 05 November 
 Day 3 28 November 

 
 
2.6 It is believed that attendance at all three days of the course will satisfy at least the 

minimum of training required to satisfy thr first of the six CIPFA principles.  Attendees at 
all three session will receive a certificate of attendance. 

 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The delegate rate for each session, inclusive of lunch, refreshments and all delegate 
materials is £225 plus VAT.   Travelling costs and accommodation, where required, will 
be an additional expense.  These costs can be met from existing budgets. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

Page 92



10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That attendance by Members on the ‘Fundamentals training’ be approved. 
 
12.2 That Members wishing to take advantage of this opportunity notify the Head of Pension 

Fund to enable the necessary registration and administration to be undertaken. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Attendance is likely to be of most benefit to newer members of Committee providing a 
useful grounding in all aspects of local government pensions. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 93



 

Page 94



Appendix 1 
 
Fundamentals XII 2013 - Day 1  
 
9.30 Registration and Coffee  
 
9.50 Introduction to the Programme  
 
10.00 The Benefits Framework “Past and Present”  
� History of the LGPS and interaction with State Provision  
� The 2008 Scheme – a core scheme plus discretions; a look at the comprehensive 
benefit structure of the scheme  
� Differences in the 2009 Scheme in Scotland  
� Administering Authority and Employing Authority Discretions – how many there are 
and who is responsible for them  
� Pensions for Councillors  
 
11.00 Coffee Break  
 
11:15 The Investment Framework  
� The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 – the statutory framework for investments  
� CIPFA Principles – a look at the six investment principles  
� Statement of Investment Principles  
� Interaction with the Funding Strategy Statement  
� Governance Compliance Statements  
� Annual Reports and Auditing  
 
12:00 Delivering the Service  
� Partnership Working  
� Framework Agreements  
� Financial Services procurement and relationship management  
� Supplier risk management  
� Performance of support services  
 
12.30 Lunch  
 
1.30 to 4:00 (Break at 2:45) BACK TO BASICS - Traditional Asset Classes  
 
An explanation of:  
� UK Equities, Overseas Equities  
� UK Gilts, UK Index-Linked Gilts  
� Corporate Bonds, Property  
 
Including a look at:  
� Why invest in Fixed Income and Equity Markets?  
� Long Term Investment Performance of Equities and Fixed Income  
� Benchmarks used  

Page 95



� Cashflows  
� The Bond Market  
� Return / Risk Profiles  
 
4.00 Close  
 
Fundamentals XII 2013 - Day 2  
 
9:30 Registration and Coffee  
 
9:45 Valuations  
� The Purpose of an Actuarial Valuation  
� Assets and Liabilities  
� How do liability calculations work?  
� What assumptions are used?  
 
Funding Strategy Statements  
� What is the funding strategy?  
� Different Employers – different characteristics and objectives  
� What is the strength of the covenant?  
� Deficit Recovery Periods  
 
11:15 Break 
  
11.30 Corporate Governance  
� Approach to Corporate Governance  
� Voting, Activism and Engagement  
� Institutional Shareholders Committee principles  
� Socially Responsible Investment  
 
12.30 Lunch  
 
1.30 Communication Strategies/Policies  
� Policy Statement Requirements  
� LGPS – Valuable part of employment package  
� Purpose and effect – Changes and Choices  
� A look at some good practice initiatives  
 
2.00 to 4:00 (Break at 2:45) BACK TO BASICS 2 – Established Alternative 
Investments  
 
An explanation of:  
� Private Equity, Commodities, Hedge Funds, Emerging Markets, Currency Funds, High 
Yield Bonds and Overlays  
 
Including a look at:  
� The market evolution of Alpha and Beta  
� Private Equity sectors  
� Commodities – what do they cover and why include them in a portfolio?  

Page 96



� The Hedge Fund universe  
� The background to Emerging markets  
� The value of Currency Funds and Currency Overlays  
� How High Yield Bonds fit into the Bond market  
 
4:00 Close  
 
Fundamentals XII 2013 - Day 3  
 
9:30 Registration and Coffee  
 
9:45 Duties and Responsibilities of Committee Members  
� The LGPS in its legal context  
� General local authority legal issues  
� LGPS specific duties and responsibilities  
� Wider duties and responsibilities  
� What happens when things go wrong?  
 
11:15 Break  
 
11:30 The Future for the LGPS?  
� Following on from Hutton  
� Negotiation and Consultation  
� The LGPS2014 Project  
 
12:30 Lunch  
 
1:30 Focus on good governance  
� Far more than just corporate governance  
� Delegation and representation  
� Spending the governance budget  
� Managers and Manager Selection  
� Manager de-selection  
 
2:15 to 4:00 (Break at 2:45) BACK TO BASICS 3 - Bringing it all together  
� The Evolution of LGPS Benchmarks  
� Portfolios and Portfolio Construction  
� Portfolio Concepts  
� Combining Assets in your Portfolio  
� Risks and Efficient Frontiers  
� Standard Deviation  
� Correlation  
� Diversification  
� Three Things to Remember!  
 
3:55 Course Review and Further Information  
 
4:00 Close  

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: LAPFF CONFERENCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends the Committee to approve attendance by the Chair and the 
Executive Board member at the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) Annual 
Conference, organised by PIRC, to be held in Bournemouth from 4 to 6 December 
2013. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 MPF is a member of LAPFF and its Annual General Meeting and annual conference 
provides a forum for topical issues affecting Local Authority Pension Funds to be 
discussed and addressed. 

 
2.2 The Chair of Pensions Committee is on the LAPFF Executive.  With responsible 

investment issues gaining a higher profile it is proposed that the arrangements 
pertaining last year are continued and invitations extended to party spokespersons as 
well as the Chair. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

Agenda Item 12

Page 99



7.1 LAPFF membership allows for two free conference places.  Additional places, 
accommodation and travelling costs can be met from the existing budget.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That attendance at the LAPFF conference by the Chair and party spokepersons be 
approved. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Attendance at this conference is a part of the development programme approved by 
Members in January 2013. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

September 2012 

September 2011 

September 2010 

Page 100



 

 

 

Page 101



 

Page 102



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: INFRASTRUCTURE & PRIVATE EQUITY 

SEMINAR 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report asks the Committee to consider attendance by Members at an Infrastructure 
& Private Equity Seminar, organised by Capital Dynamics, to be held in Manchester on 
13 November 2013. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 Members have attended previous events run by Capital Dynamics which are provided 
on a complimentary basis.  MPF invests in both asset classes and the morning sessions 
are intended to provide an introduction to Infrastructure and Private Equity which will be 
of particular benefit to newer members of Committee.  The afternoon sessions cover 
specific matters in greater depth.   

 
2.2 The provisional agenda is set out below: 
 
 Morning Sessions 

• Infrastructure & Private Equity Training Workshop 
 
     Afternoon Sessions 

• Energy and Mainstream Infrastructure 
• Fees – Appropriate fee levels? How to reduce fees? 
• Secondary Investing 
• Emerging Markets & Asia 
• An investors perspective (external speaker from a large UK Pension Fund) 

 
2.3 Members may choose to attend for the entire day or for just the morning or afternoon 

sessions. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

Agenda Item 13

Page 103



4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The seminar is provided on a complimentary basis.  Travelling costs can be met from 
the existing budget.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That Committee considers attendance at this seminar and proves attendance for those 
Members who wish to attend. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 MPF invests in both infrastructure and private equity and this seminar will provide 
addition knowledge and information for Members. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
 

Page 104



REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 105



 

Page 106



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: NAPF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION & RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends the Committee to consider attendance by Members at the 
National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF) Annual Conference, to be held in 
Manchester from 16 to 18 October 2013. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 MPF is a member of NAPF and its annual conference provides a forum for topical 
issues affecting public and private pension funds to be discussed and addressed. 

 
2.2 Attendance would be beneficial to Members in fulfilling the Committee’s Knowledge and 

Skills objectives as set out by CIPFA. 
 
2.3 Whilst not all topics and presentations are relevant to Members, there are a number of  

useful subjects on the agenda and several high profile speakers including Steve Webb 
MP, Minister for Pensions, Gregg McClymont, Shadow Minister for Pensions, Nigel 
Waterson, NOW:Pensions, Robert Peston, Broadcaster and others.  As the event is in 
the region, Members will be able to manage their attendance at relevant sessions as 
appropriate. 

 
2.4 Members must be registered for the event in order to attend.  Although the event is 

complimentary for NAPF members, a charge is made for non-attendance. 
 
2.5 Appendix 1 provides further information on the event including the programme of 

events. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

Agenda Item 14

Page 107



5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 NAPF membership allows for free conference places although a charge is levied in the 
event of non-attendance.   The principal cost will be travel to Manchester.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That attendance at the NAPF conference by Members be approved. 
 
12.2 That Members wishing to attend the conference notify the Head of Pension Fund to 

enable the necessary registration and administration to be undertaken. 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 Attendance at this conference will assist Members in fulfilling the Committee’s 
Knowledge and Skills objectives as set out by CIPFA. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Page 108



Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 109



 

Appendix 1 

Wednesday 17 October  

08:30 Registration open 

09:00 - 
12:45 

Trustee Learning 
Zone - View details 

09:00 - 12:45 Fringe meetings - View 
details 

10:00 Exhibition open, refreshments served in the exhibition hall 

12:00 - 
13:30 

Lunch in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 1 

13:30 - 
14:00 

Chairman's welcome and introduction 
Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plenary 2 

14:00 - 
14:45 

Politics, power and the economy: what next for Britain and the EU? 
With the Eurozone on the brink and the future of the EU itself at stake, we get the 
ultimate insider briefing on the political and economic crisis gripping Brussels and 
Westminster. 
Lord Mandelson, former EU Commissioner  
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

14:45 - 
15:30 

Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 3 

15:30 - 
16:00 

Keynote address 
Session to be confirmed. 

Plenary 4 

16:00 - 
16:45 

The view from Frankfurt 
Europe's top pensions regulator explains how EIOPA is reshaping the framework for 
your pension scheme and gives us an inside perspective on moves towards the new 
EU pensions Directive. 
Gabriel Bernardino, Chair of the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions 
Authority (EIOPA) 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

Plenary 5 

16:40 - 
17:20 

Living longer, working longer, saving more 

Money Saving Expert, author, journalist and campaigning TV and radio presenter, 
Martin Lewis, shares his view of the changes and challenges we face in the ways we 
live, work and save. 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

    

 

17:30 - 
18:30 Fringe meetings - View details 

Page 110



18:30 - 
19:30  

Welcome Drinks Reception in the exhibition hall hosted by the City of 
Liverpool 

    

 

Thursday 18 October 

 

07:30 Registration open 

07:45 - 
08:45 

NAPF fund member breakfast - for NAPF fund members by invitation only 

08:45 Exhibition open 

Plenary 6 

09:00 - 
09:40 

Auto-enrolment - ready, steady, go! 
With auto-enrolment launching officially on 1 October, two schemes in the first 
'wave' share the lessons they have learnt and their 'do's and don'ts' for other 
schemes following their footsteps. 
David Brennan, J Sainsbury 
Tim Jones, NEST Corporation 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

DB STREAM DC STREAM 

PENSIONS 
& 
EMPLOYEE 
BENEFIT 
STREAM 

FD STREAM 

 

Sponsored by 

 
Media Partner: 
tbc 

Sponsored by  

Media Partner: 

 

Sponsored by 

Media 
Partner: 

Sponsored by 

Media Partner:  

09:45 - 
10:30 
Session 1 

Data: the good, 
bad and the 
ugly 
What does 'best 
look like' when 
it comes to 
managing your 
scheme's data? 

Helping employers ensure 
value for money for their 
members 
A new charges code of 
practice is being designed to 
drive up transparency for 
employers choosing a 
pension scheme for auto-

Business 
benefit or 
blind faith? 
From 2012, 
providing a 
workplace 
pension will 
be 

The 
economy: 
knowns and 
unknowns for 
investors 
With the 
European and 
global outlook 

Page 111



A scheme 
manager shares 
his/her top tips 
and the Pension 
Protection Fund 
(PPF) draws on 
its experience of 
data retrieval 
from schemes in 
its assessment 
process. 
Rob 
Haslingden, 
Experian 
David Heslop, 
PPF 
Chaired by: 
David Rowley, 
Pensions Week 

enrolment. We will hear from 
industry representatives how 
providers plan to 
communicate costs, charges 
and value for money going 
forward and the steps they 
are taking to implement the 
new code of practice. 
Stephen Gay, ABI 
Lesley Williams, Whitbread 
and Vice-Chairman, NAPF 
Retirement Policy Council 
Chaired by: Alan Woods, 
Independent Adviser to the 
NAPF 

compulsory, 
and 
employers 
may take 
some 
persuading to 
do any more 
than the 
minimum. 
How can 
providing 
good pensions 
still play a 
role in active 
workforce 
strategies in 
this new 
environment, 
and what's in 
it for the 
business at 
the end of the 
day? 
Paul 
Armitage, 
JLT Benefit 
Solutions 
Gary Dewin, 
The Co-
operative 
Group 
John Wilson, 
JLT Benefit 
Solutions 
Chaired by: 
David Astley, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy 
Council 

uncertain, two 
experts share 
their thoughts 
on the current 
economic 
climate and 
potential 
scenarios for 
investors. 
Paul 
Mortimer-
Lee, BNP 
Paribas 
Co-speaker 
tbc 
Chaired by: 
David 
McGibbon, 
NAPF 
Investment 
Council 

10:30 - 
11:15 Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

11:15 - 
12:00 
Session 2 

The good 
trustee's guide 
to fiduciary 
management 
Fiduciary 
management 
allows trustees 
to delegate 
complex 

Long term saving from a 
short term perspective 
The next generation of savers 
will, almost irrespective of 
the jobs they take on, be 
automatically placed in a 
pension plan by their 
employer. Using only the 
control group of his own 

What's age 
got to do 
with it? 
Our panel of 
experts 
provide case 
studies and 
advice on 
innovation 

The 
economy: 
what it means 
for derisking 
your scheme 
The first 
session in this 
stream assesed 
the economy's 

Page 112



investment 
decisions to the 
experts, but it 
doesn't let 
trustees off the 
hook altogether. 
This session 
asks what good 
governance 
looks like in a 
fiduciary 
management 
world and 
shows how you 
can get 
delegation right. 
Sion Cole, Aon 
Hewitt 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: 
Darren Philp, 
Director of 
Policy, NAPF 

family, the presenter will 
explore the subject from the 
perspective of some very 
young minds! 
Philippa Cochrane, Scottish 
Book Trust 
Jamie Jenkins, Standard 
Life 
Chaired by: Mark Cobley, 
Financial News 

strategies for 
communicatin
g and 
engaging with 
different 
groups of 
employees on 
pensions and 
employee 
benefits - 
focussing on 
how 
communicatio
n with 
employees 
might need to 
change and 
adapt across 
their life 
cycle. 
Nigel 
Ferrier, 
Ferrier Pearce 
Geoff 
McKenzie, 
Vodafone 
Alex 
Thurley-
Ratcliff, 
Shilling 
Communicati
on 
Chaired by: 
Dan 
Torjussen-
Proctor, 
Business 
Development 
Director, 
NAPF 

impact on 
investments; 
now we look 
specifically at 
how the 
economy will 
help or hinder 
your journey 
towards 
derisking. 
What do 
current gilt 
yields mean 
for your 
scheme 
liabilities and 
what is the 
industry's 
capacity to 
cope with 
what some 
predict will be 
an increased 
number of 
buyouts/ins? 
Mark Duke, 
Towers 
Watson 
Andrew 
Waring, 
MNOPF 
Chaired by: 
Bruce Garner, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

 

Plenary 7 

12:05 - 
12:35 

Keeping the Coalition in check 
A year after his pensions debut at the 2011 NAPF Conference, the Shadow Pensions 
Minister sets out what he has learnt since picking up the reins and outlines his 
priorities for getting people saving. 
Gregg McClymont MP, Shadow Pensions Minister 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

12:35 - 
13:45 Lunch in the exhibition hall 

Page 113



13:45 - 
14:30 
Session 3 

Of Brussels 
and Barnier: 
what the new 
EU pensions 
directive means 
for your 
scheme 
The European 
Commission's 
overhaul of the 
IORP Directive 
will set a new 
framework for 
scheme funding, 
governance and 
communicaitons
. Learn more 
about the likely 
impact and how 
you can get 
involved in the 
debate. 
Tom Merchant, 
USS 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: 
James Walsh, 
Senior Policy 
Adviser: 
Workplace 
Pensions, NAPF 

Making the most of your 
pension pot at retirement 
The benefits of shopping 
around for an annuity at 
retirement are significant. 
How can industry-led 
solutions give DC pension 
scheme members access to 
the whole of market guidance 
and advice at retirement in a 
targeted and cost-effective 
way? 
Alan Higham, Annuity 
Direct 
Julian Webb, FIL 
Investment Management 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Mel Duffield, 
Head of Research and 
Strategic Policy, NAPF 

Knowledge is 
power - 
making the 
member data 
work for you 
How can 
liberating 
member data 
give 
employers 
greater 
control, give 
employees 
better 
engagement 
with their 
savings and 
benefits, drive 
up 
efficiencies 
and drive 
down costs? 
Speakers tbc 
Chaired by: 
Darren Philp, 
Director of 
Policy, NAPF 

Session to be 
confirmed. 

14:35 - 
15:15 
Session 4 

Managing DB 
risk in the mid 
market  
Some de-risking 
options are seen 
as the preserve 
of hte largest 
schemes, but 
how can other 
schemes benefit 
from the latest 
approaches to 
managing risk? 
Hear from those 
who have been 
there and done it 
with schemes in 
the middle of 
the market. 
Steve Balmont, 

Where is risk in DC? 
Investment is all about risk - 
from short term volatility to 
long term inflation - and DC 
is no different. What are the 
risks, why do people tend to 
'set and forget' in their default 
strategies and what are the 
things to consider in taking 
alternative approaches? What 
is the consumer perspective 
on risk in DC, and what can 
the industry do to shore up 
confidence in pension 
saving? 
Andrew Dickson, Standard 
Life Investments 
Jeff Prestridge, Mail on 
Sunday 
Chaired by: Jerry Gandhi, 

Is the future 
flexible? 
How are 
flexible 
benefits 
packages 
developing to 
help 
employers 
deliver auto-
enrolment, 
and will we 
see a shift 
towards flex 
systems as the 
advantages of 
these 
packages 
become clear? 
Will flexible 

Incentivised 
transfers: has 
the code 
cracked it? 

What 
difference has 
the new 
industry Code 
of Practice 
made to 
Enhanced 
Transfer 
exercises and 
Pension 
Increase 
Exchanges? 
One of the 
Code's 
author's and a 
finance 

Page 114



Law Debenture 
Paul McGlone, 
Aon Hewitt 
Chaired by: 
Stella Eastwood, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

NAPF Retirement Policy 
Council 

benefits be a 
game changer 
for take-up of 
pensions? 
Jenny 
Davidson, 
CSC  
Matt Waller, 
Benefex 

Chaired by: 
Emma 
Douglas, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy 
Council  

director reflect 
on its impact. 
Margaret 
Snowdon, 
Lucida 
David 
Saunders, 
Sackers 
Chaired by: 
Jane 
Samsworth, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

15:15 - 
16:00 Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

16:00 - 
16:40 
Session 5 

Employer 
covenant: 
despatches 
from the front 
line 
What is best 
practice in 
assessing, 
monitoring and 
managing the 
sponsor's 
support for a DB 
scheme? Hear 
from people 
who live and 
breathe 
employer 
convenant issues 
on a daily basis. 
Peter 
Thompson, 
BESTrustees 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Joy 
Moore, NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

The 6 Ps for good DC 
This session will hear from 
the Pensions Regulator on 
how their '6 principles' for 
DC are developing and from 
two employers/schemes on 
what they are likely to mean 
in practice across both trust 
based and contract based 
schemes. To what extent are 
schemes already ahead or 
behind the curve? 
Darran Burton, the 
Pensions Regulator 
Janis Ireland, Heineken 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Richard Butcher, 
NAPF Retirement Policy 
Council 

Picking a 
pension - 
made simple 
This session 
gives you 10 
top tips when 
choosing a 
pension 
scheme for 
auto-
enrolment. 
What might 
be special 
about your 
workforce 
that means 
that one 
provider 
might be 
more suitable 
than another, 
and what are 
the elephant 
traps to 
avoid? 
Speakers tbc 
Chaired by: 
David Woods, 
HR magazine  

Defined 
ambition - 
what's in it 
for FD's? 
With the 
Pensions 
Minister 
talking about a 
new 
generation of 
risk-sharing 
pension 
schemes, 
could 'defined 
ambition' help 
FDs t manage 
liabilities and 
corporate 
balance 
sheets? 
Francois 
Barker, 
Eversheds 
Co-speaker 
tbc 
Chaired by: 
Adam Walker, 
Chairman, 
NAPF 
Liverpool 
Local Group 

Page 115



Plenary 8 

16:45 - 
17:05 

An NAPF view 
Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

Plenary 9 

17:05 - 
17:55 

Keynote address 
Steve Webb MP, Minister of State for Pensions 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

18:00 - 
18:30 

Launch of the new NAPF Made Simple Guides on the NAPF stand in the 
exhibition hall 

19:30 - 
23:00 

Conference Gala Dinner sponsored by Neptune Investment Management at 
Liverpool Cathedral  

Dress code: lounge suits  

     

 

Friday 19 October 

 

08:15 Registration open 

08:30 
- 
09:00 

NAPF Annual General Meeting 

09:00 Exhibition open 

Plena
ry 10 

09:15 
- 
10:00 

Predicting impossible futures - navigating turbulent times 
Europe's trendspotter takes you on a thrill-ride driven by two questions "What's going 
on in the world?" and "Where are we heading?" 
Magnus Lindkvist 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plena
ry 11 

10:00 
- 
10:30 

Balloon debate 
What is the key to reinvigorating workplace pensions? Vote, vote and vote again to 
decide which of our experts has made the best pitch on the future of pensions and 
which should be 'eliminated' from the NAPF's metaphorical ballon. No hot air please! 
Emma Douglas, Mercer 
Robin Ellison, Pinsent Masons 
Steve Rumbles, BlackRock 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

10:30 
- 
11:15 

Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

Plena
ry 12 

11:15 

Lessons from afar 
The UK pensions landscape is going through a period of significant change. What 
lessons can we learn from the US and Australia? What are the ptifalls to avoid? 
Nancy Heller, TIAA-CREF 

Page 116



- 
12:00 

Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plena
ry 13 

12:00 
- 
12:45 

Keynote address - The Wonders of Life 
The renowned physicist and popular scientist shares his view of Man's place in the 
Universe. 
Professor Brian Cox 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

12:45 
- 
13:00 

Closing comments 

Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

13:00 
- 
14:00 

Lunch in the exhibition hall and close of conference 

 

 

Page 117



 

Page 118



 

 

Keynote speakers: 

 
Steve Webb MP, Minister for Pensions 
Gregg McClymont MP, Shadow Minister for Pensions 
Robert Peston, Broadcaster 
Rt Hon Michael Portillo, Ex-politician, writer and broadcaster 
Nigel Waterson, NOW: Pensions 
Vincent Franklin, Quietroom 
Nick Hewer, Host of Countdown 
and video message from HRH The Prince of Wales 

 
 

CPD points: This Conference qualifies for up to 7 hours CPD under the PMI CPD scheme and may qualify for CPD hours under the schemes of other professional 

bodies.  

 
 

 

 

P
age 119



 

Wednesday 16 October 

 

09:30 Registration open 

10:00 - 
13:00 

Trustee Learning Zone - View 
details 

10:00 - 
12:30 Fringe meetings - View details 

10:00 Exhibition open, refreshments served in the exhibition hall 

12:00 - 
13:30 

Lunch in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 1 

13:30 - 
14:00 

Chairman's welcome and introduction 
Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plenary 2 

14:00 - 
14:45 

From perfect storm to sustainable economy  
HRH The Prince of Wales opens our first plenary debate by challenging pension funds to take the lead in replacing 'quarterly 
capitalism' with a more sustainable and resilient economic model. Three senior leaders in business and investment give their 
response. 
HRH The Prince of Wales video message 
Paul Clements-Hunt, The Blended Capital Group 
Paul Spencer, Chair, BT Pension Scheme 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: John Plender, FT 

Plenary 3 The economy: how we can fix it 

P
age 120



14:45 - 
15:25 

Are we on track to build a more sustainable economy driven by investment and exports, or are we stuck in an era of debt and 
over-consumption? A leading business commentator gives his expert assessment of the state of the economy and explains the 
implications for pension funds as key players in the investment markets. 
Robert Peston, Broadcaster 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

15:25 - 
16:15 

Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 4 

16:15 - 
17:30 

DC - value for money? The OFT's view and the industry's response 
The Office of Fair Trading's investigation into DC pensions is set to raise the stakes on whether DC offers value for money. In 
this first major public debate on the report, leading figures from politics and pensions give their thoughts on its analysis and 
recommendations - and set out how they plan to rise to the OFT's challenge.  
Gregg McClymont, Shadow Minister for Pensions 
David Nish, Standard Life 
Ed Smith, Office of Fair Trading 
Nigel Waterson, NOW: Pensions 
Chaired by: Holly Thomas, The Sunday Times 

17:35 - 
18:30 

Fringe meetings - View details 

18:30  Close of conference for the day 

19:30  Close of exhibition for the day 

    

  

 

 

P
age 121



 

Thursday 17 October 

07:45 Registration open 

08:00 - 

08:45 

NAPF fund member breakfast (for NAPF fund members only) 

 

Join the NAPF for an informal buffet breakfast and hear the latest on a variety of pensions issues. This is your opportunity to raise questions 

and debate the issues. 

 

Pre-registration essential, please click here to register. 

08:45 Exhibition open 

Plenary 
5 

09:00 - 

09:55 

Going global 

 
What is it that puts Denmark, the Netherlands and Australia top of the class in pension provision? The co-ordinator of the leading study of 

global pensions systems presents the 2013 edition and pensions leaders from top-ranked countries comment on the remaining challenges for 

their pension systems and the implications for the UK. 

 

David Knox, Mercer 

Carsten Stendevad, Denmark 

Jasper Kemme, The Netherlands 

Fiona Reynolds, Australia 

Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

 

 

P
age 122



10:00 - 

10:45 

Session 1 

Derisking your liabilities 

Over recent years more 

damage has been done to 

pension funding by scheme 

liabilities than by scheme 

assets, and on a daily 

basis the liabilities of most 

pension schemes are more 

volatile than their assets. 

Yet the larger proportion of 

'derisking' activity to date 

has related to the assets. 

This session will consider 

what trustees and sponsors 

can be doing to manage 

the risks on the liability side 

of the balance sheet, what 

has prevented some of 

these from happening in 

the past, and what needs 

to happen to deal with 

them in the future? 
Paul McGlone, Aon Hewitt 

Graham Wardle, 

BESTrustees 
Chaired by Joy Moore, 

NAPF Retirement Policy 

Council 

Keeping on top of the 

default fund: what does 

great governance look 

like? 

Pension schemes talk 

through how they have put 

great governance in place 

around their default fund, 

including: setting 

objectives; reviewing and 

changing the existing 

default; the role of 

investment consultants; 

key features of their 

chosen fund; and engaging 

members with the default. 
Oliver Polson, Molson 

Coors 
Co-speaker tbc 

Chaired by David Astley, 

NAPF Retirement Policy 

Council 

Auto-enrolment, an 

opportunity, not just 

an increased cost 

Hear how auto-

enrolment can be used 

as an opportunity to 

maximise the return on 

investment on your 

benefits package rather 

than simply be seen as 

an additional pension 

cost. Find out why 

education and 

communication will be 

key and how the new 

legislation provides the 

perfect opportunity for 

companies to re-

engage with their 

workforce and become 

an employer of choice. 
Jon Bryant, JLT 

Benefit Solutions 
Sara Harper-Holton, 

Weightwatchers 
Chaired by Frances 

Corbett, Educational 

Development Manager, 

NAPF 

What next after Solvency II? 

With a new funding regime for pension schemes now on 

the Brussels back-burner, what can we expect from the 

new EU pensions Directive?  
Brendan Mulkern, Universities Superannuation Scheme 

Co-speaker tbc 

Chaired by Francois Barker, NAPF Retirement Policy 

Council 

P
age 123



10:45 - 

11:20 
Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

11:20 - 

12:05 

Session 2 

Getting value from your 

consultants: the 

poachers turned 

gamekeepers' view 

Two ex-consultants, now 

scheme managers, share 

their top tips on ensuring 

your advisers deliver 

practical advice that helps 

you deliver the best service 

to your members. 
Simon Banks, RBS 

Sally Bridgeland, BP 

Pension Trustees 
Chaired by Ian Smith, 

Pensions Week 

DC surgery: what's hot 

and what's not? 

Your chance to quiz the 

experts on 3 hot topics and 

have your say on what's 

hot and what's not when 

stripping out the risks. 

- Fund choice for members 

- too much of a good thing? 

- Diversified growth funds - 

over cooked? 

- Target date funds - the 

new lifestyle choice? 
Tim 

Banks, AllianceBernstein 

Institutional Investments 
Andrew Cheseldine, Lane 

Clark & Peacock 
Nils Johnson, Spence 

Johnson 

Chaired by tbc 

Targeting rewards for 

a diverse workforce 

Hear about some really 

innovative approaches 

to segmentation of 

employee benefits 

packages. How do 

these link into 

recruitment and 

retention strategies? 

How can these be 

effectively 

communicated and 

targeted? 
John Chilman, 

FirstGroup 
Co-speaker tbc 

Chaired by Helen 

Forrest, Head of Policy 

& Advocacy, NAPF 

What to do if you cannot get your DB scheme off 

your balance sheet? 

For many, pension funds are not a key employee benefit 

but a burden for the sponsoring company. With a buyout 

or matching not an option, what can you do? Two 

experts look at alternative liability hedging strategies, 

new ways investors can plug the return gap and the 

impact these changes can have on the company balance 

sheet.  
Sorca Kelly-Scholte, Russell Investments 

Cospeaker tbc 

Chaired by Robert Brown, NAPF Investment Council 

 
 
 
 

Plenary 
6 
12:10 - 

12:45 

Details coming soon...  

P
age 124



12:45 - 

13:45 
Lunch in the exhibition hall 

13:45 - 

14:30 

Session 3 

Valuation and investment 

- you decide 

Time to go to work! This 

'hands-on' session sees 

delegates tackle a pension 

scheme case study. You 

will take the parts of 

employers or trustees as 

you weigh up the pressures 

on scheme and sponsor 

and decide on the best 

funding and investment 

decisions for the future of 

the scheme. 
David Davies, 

Nortel Networks UK 
Jonathon Land, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Chaired by James Walsh, 

Policy Lead: EU & 

International, NAPF  

You can't always get 

what you (and your 

scheme members) want 

What do savers really want 

from their DC pension and 

where are those running 

pension schemes wasting 

their time? Do savers really 

care about how much is in 

their pot, how many pots 

they have, guarantees and 

what they are investing in? 

How can we build more 

trust and confidence? 
Mike Acred, LV= 

Alex Thurley-

Ratcliff, Shilling 

Communication 
Chaired by Mark Cobley, 

Financial News 

Automatic enrolment: 

all aboard! 

A practical trouble-

shooting session on 

how to implement auto-

enrolment smoothly, 

with a particular focus 

on SMEs. Find out 

what the potential 

pitfalls are for the next 

wave of 'Stagers' and 

how consultants and 

providers are learning 

from their experiences 

with some of hte first 

companies to auto-

enrol, to develop 'off 

the shelf' cost effective 

solutions for SMEs. 
Roy Porter, NEST 

Corporation 
John Wilson, JLT 

Benefit Solutions 
Chaired by Mel 

Duffield, Head of 

Research, NAPF 

 

The golden age of bond investing is over: what does 

this mean for derisking a plan? 

Bond strategies have comprised a significant portion of 

pension portfolios as an effective way of derisking the 

plan and hedging liabilities. With yields at historically low 

levels, do we need to rethink derisking? What can we do 

in this space to maintain attractive bond yields and how 

do we balance the interests of sponsors, pensioners and 

employees? 
David Adkins, The Pensions Trust 

David Druley, Cambridge Associates 

Chaired by Jane Samsworth, NAPF Retirement Policy 

Council 

P
age 125



14:35 - 

15:15 

Session 4 

What delegation has 

done for us 

Some of the earliest 

adopters of fiduciary 

management - both 

trustees and employers - 

share their experiences of 

delegating pension scheme 

investment. This session is 

a key learning opportunity 

for any scheme considering 

taking the plunge into 

fiduciary management. 
Richard Butcher, PTL 

Sion Cole, Aon Hewitt 

Delegated Consulting 

Services 
Chaired by Martin 

Mannion, Chaiman, NAPF 

Investment Council 

Delivering value for 

members: avoiding a 

race to the bottom 

This panel debates what 

parts of the pensions food 

chain are the most 

important for delivering 

value for members. Is the 

downward pressure on 

charges in the UK stifling 

innovation and driving a 

'race to the bottom'? Are 

there elements of costs we 

could strip away and others 

where we are not spending 

enough to get the best 

outcomes for members? 
Stephen Bowles, 

Schroders 
Jamie Fiveash, The 

People's Pension 
Andy Seed, KPMG 

Chaired by Emma 

Douglas, NAPF 

Retirement Policy Council 

Extra dough from 

automatic enrolment - 

engaging with our 

employees to save 

and make pension 

choices 

Hear first hand from 

the Pensions Manager 

of a leading bakery 

brand on how they 

rolled out automatic 

enrolment to 1800 

employees across 25 

sites with a focus on 

engaging their workers 

in the importance of 

saving for their 

retirement and making 

pension choices. 
Anne Hunt and 

Graeme Mearns, 

Warburtons 
Chaired by Lesley 

Williams, Vice-

Chairman, NAPF 

Retirement Policy 

Council 

Where are we now on contingent assets? 

Can contingent assets still make an effective contribution 

to scheme funding? Hear why a leading pensions 

lawyer thinks the answer is 'yes' and from the Pension 

Protection Fund for their views and also on why 

they have stepped up checks on the strength of scheme 

assets and what it means for your balance sheet. 
Philip Goss, Linklaters 

David Taylor, Pension Protection Fund 

Chaired by Ian Fairweather, NAPF Retirement Policy 

Council 

  

15:15 - 

16:00 
Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

P
age 126



16:00 - 

16:40 

Session 5 

The law, the Regulator 

and you 

Nothing stands still in 

pensions regulation. What 

would a new objective, 

requiring the Pensions 

Regulator to consider the 

long-term affordability of 

recovery plans to 

employers, mean for your 

sponsor and your scheme? 

How does the latest raft of 

court rulings affect the way 

the Regulator will deal with 

your scheme? Our panel 

helps you to get up to 

speed. 
Elmer Doonan, Dentons 

UKMEA 
Simon Kew, Jackal 

Advisory 
Stephen Soper, The 

Pensions Regulator 
Chaired by David 

McGibbon, NAPF 

Retirement Policy Council 

 

 

 

Saving for retirement: a 

game of two halves? 

The approach to saving for 

retirement is still far too 

static - we're either 

'accumulating' or 

'decumulating' - we need to 

get more strategic. What 

issues should we really be 

focussing on for scheme 

members at half time? 

What happens if we have 

to call extra time? How do 

we avoid going to 

penalties? 
David Hutchins, 

AllianceBernstein 

Institutional Investments 
Carol Young, Heineken 

Chaired by Darren Philp, 

Director of Policy, NAPF 

Will you still need me, 
will you still feed me, 

when I'm sixty-four? 
With the State Pension 

Age moving ever further 
out of reach, and with 

long retirements looking 
increasingly unaffordable, 

how soon does the world 
of work need to adapt and 

how can employee 
benefit packages bring 

together what employers 
and employees want? 

Justine James, 
talentsmoothie 

Clare Mulligan, Clare 
Mulligan Consulting 

Chaired by Katie Jacobs, 
HR magazine 

The explicit cost of outsourcing versus the implicit 

cost of not 

Keeping your scheme's strategy on track can mean 

more outsourcing to implement your plan - with higher 

explicit costs to match. This session examines the 

different approaches to outsourcing, how it can add more 

value and the implicit costs of getting it wrong. 
Michael Coletta, Hilton UK Pension Trustee 

Shamindra Perera, Russell Investments 

Chaired by Sue Timbrell, NAPF Investment Council  

P
age 127



Plenary 
7 
16:45 - 

17:05 

A sustainable pensions system - what, when and how? 
The successful launch of auto-enrolment and legislation for a single-tier state pension have been major steps forward for 
retirement saving. But what's next? The NAPF's Chief Executive sets out the steps policy-makers will need to take if we are to 
build a pensions system that is truly sustainable over the long-term.  
Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

Plenary 
8 
17:05 - 

17:55 

A 2020s vision for pensions 
The Pensions Minister shares his vision of the pensions landscape in the next decade and explains how he plans to help us 
build it. 
Steve Webb MP, Minister for Pensions 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

18:00 - 

18:30 

Launch of new NAPF made simple guides on the NAPF stand in the exhibition hall. 

Meet the guides' sponsors and pick up your complimentary copy of the guide.  

19:30 - 

23:00 

Conference Gala Dinner sponsored by Capita Employee Benefits at Manchester Central 

Join us for an evening of great food and entertainment. 
After-dinner speaker: Marcus Brigstocke, Comedian, Actor and Satirist 
Dress code: lounge suits  

     

  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 128



Friday 18 October 

 

08:15 Registration open 

08:30 - 09:00 NAPF Annual General Meeting 

09:00 Exhibition open 

Plenary 9 
09:15 - 09:35 

Address by Ruston Smith, In-coming Chairman, NAPF 

Plenary 10 

09:35 - 10:10 

Politics vs pensions 
How well does our political system deliver on pensions? Can Governments ever really think long-term when the next election 
is always less than 5 years away? A former Cabinet Minister, turned broadcaster gives his perspective on whether Whitehall 
and Westminster are fit for pensions' purpose. 
Rt Hon Michael Portillo, Ex-politician, writer and broadcaster 
Chaired by: Ruston Smith, In-coming Chairman, NAPF 

Plenary 11 
10:10 - 10:55 

Hopes and fears - the CEO's perspective 
Four pension scheme CEOs identify their biggest challenges, set out their plans for tackling them and reveal what keeps 
them awake at night. 
Lesley Alexander, HSBC Pension Scheme 
Stephen Nichols, The Pensions Trust 
Co-speakers tbc 
Chaired by: Padraig Floyd, Journalist 

10:55 - 11:40 
Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

 

P
age 129



 

Plenary 12 
11:40 - 12:20 

 

Stop going on about pensions, you're scaring me! 
In this session our speaker shows how easy it is to ditch the language of process and start using words that mean people not 
only understand pensions, they actually want one. 

 
Vincent Franklin, Quietroom 

 
Chaired by: Lesley Williams, In-coming Chairman, NAPF DC Council 

Plenary 13 
12:20 - 12:55 

Why I'm still in 

 
The businessman, TV personality and supporter of auto-enrolment shares his personal perspective on life as a working 
pensioner.  

 
Nick Hewer, Host of Countdown and right-hand man to Lord Sugar on The Apprentice 
Chaired by: Ruston Smith, In-coming Chairman, NAPF 

 

12:55 - 13:05 Closing comments 
 
Ruston Smith, In-coming Chairman, NAPF 
 

13:05 - 14:00 Lunch in the exhibition hall and close of conference 

 

P
age 130



WIRRAL COUNCIL                                     

PENSION COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

SUBJECT: 2 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATIONS 
AMEY SERVICES LIMITED (Streetscene 
Procurement) 
 
Lot 1 – Highways/Street Lighting  
Lot 2  - Street Cleansing  
 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO  

HOLDER: 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF  

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs members of the Interim Director of Finance decision taken 
under delegation, to approve the application received from Amey Services 
Limited for admission to Merseyside Pension Fund as a Transferee Admission 
Body.  The company has secured the Highways/Street Lighting contract (Lot 1) 
and the Street Cleansing contract (Lot 2) at Liverpool City Council from 1st July 
2013 for a period of 9 years. 

 
1.2  The appendix attached to the report contains exempt information. This is by 

virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The applications are to provide pension provision for 183 transferred staff (76 

in respect of Lot 1 and 107 in respect of Lot 2) who wish to continue to 
participate in the Local Government Pension Scheme for the duration of the 
contract period. 

 
2.2 Amey Services Limited is a private limited company registered in England and 

Wales, (number 02507588), and its principal activity during the year ended 31 
December 2012 was that of general public administration activities. 

 
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 131



 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1  The potential risk of financial loss to the Fund resulting from the admittance of 
        the company is mitigated by virtue of Regulation 38(3) (a) of the Local 
        Government Pension (Administration) Regulations 2008, which provides for the 
        ceding employer to underwrite the contractor’s pension obligations. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 The contractor’s preferred route in accordance with the Statutory Best Value 
Authorities Staff Transfer (Pension) Direction 2007 on staff Transfers was to 
secure admitted body status as an alternative to the provision of a comparable 
pension scheme.  

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 No consultation required as staff retained access to the LGPS. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 None arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The transfer of past service liabilities are to proceed on a fully funded basis and 
will have no immediate impact on Liverpool City’s Council’s current assessed 
contribution rate. 

 
7.2   Any outstanding contributions either not recovered from the contractor or any 

bond provision at closure will ultimately fall to Liverpool City Council. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The Legal documents to be drafted and approved by Wirral’s Legal 
Department. 

 

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 No, as there are no equalities implications as employees retain access to the 

LGPS. 
 

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report. 
 

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report. 
 

Page 132



12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1  It is recommended that the members of the Pension Committee note the 
approval of the applications for admission to the Merseyside Pension Fund of 
Amey Services Ltd. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The application for admission meets all prescribed regulatory and financial 
requirements under the Local Pension Scheme Regulations and the 
appropriate supporting documentation has been received and approved by the 
Fund’s Legal Monitoring Officer. All parties to the agreement are legally 
enforced to comply with the governance policy of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE CADDOCK  
  PRINCIPAL PENSION OFFICER 
  telephone:  (0151- 242-1333) 
  email:       yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Exempt Appendix included in committee papers. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

The report produced by Mercer Limited the Fund Actuary, dated 28 June 2013, was 
used in producing this report. 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

 

SUBJECT: TUNSGATE PATIO ROOF COVERING 

REPLACEMENT FOR FLATS 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

 
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the outcome for the recent 
tendering exercise in respect of replacing the patio roof covering for the flats which 
form part of the Tunsgate shopping centre in Guildford which is owned by MPF as 
part of the direct property investment portfolio. The Tendering process was 
conducted on behalf of MPF by CB Richard Ellis (CBRE). 

 
1.2 The appendix to the report (report from CBRE on the tender process) contains 

exempt information. This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972, ie information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The existing waterproof membrane was ageing with the potential to leak causing 
disruption to the retail tenants below  

 
2.2 The tender process was managed by CBRE in accordance with financial Guidelines. 

Tenders were received from: 
 
 

Cooper Clarke Ltd    
Paragon management Ltd   
Art Contracts Ltd    
 
 

Tenders were not received from Botley Roofing and Mitie Tilley Roofing. 
 
2.3 Following analysis of the tenders submitted by the contractors each were 

competitive and in the opinion of CBRE competent to undertake the proposed works. 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 135



2.4 On the basis of cost, Cooper Clarke Ltd offered the best value for the contract as 
detailed in the exempt appendix. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report.  
  

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

 
7.1 The cost of the refurbishments will be met from the investments of the Pension Fund 

and is within the existing allocation to property. There is no staffing or IT issues 
arising. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 

No, because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 Members note the acceptance by the Interim Director of Finance of the lowest cost 
tender from Cooper Clarke Ltd. 

 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 CBRE assessed the tenders and recommended acceptance of the tender from 
Cooper Clarke which offered the best value in the circumstances. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Paddy Dowdall  
  Investment Manager 
  telephone:  0151 2421310 

Page 136



  paddydowdall@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

16 SEPTEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY 

MINUTES 

WARD/S AFFECTED: NONE 

REPORT OF: STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 

TRANSFORMATION AND RESOURCES 

KEY DECISION?  (Defined in 
paragraph 13.3 of Article 13 
‘Decision Making’ in the Council’s 
Constitution.) 

NO 

  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report provides members with the minutes of the Governance & Risk Working 
Party (GRWP) held 18 July 2013. 

 
1.2 An exempt report on the agenda, the minutes of the GRWP on 18 July 2013, contains 

exempt information.  This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The GRWP meets twice yearly to enable Members and their advisers to consider 
governance and risk matters, relating to Merseyside pension Fund, in greater detail. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.  
 
 

Agenda Item 17

Page 139



8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S 

12.1 That members approve the minutes of the GRWP 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The approval of the GRWP minutes by Pensions Committee forms part of the 
governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund.  These arrangements were 
approved by Pensions Committee as part of the Fund’s Governance Statement on 27 
June 2011. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Attendance and declarations of interest. 
Appendix 2 – Exempt item 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

GRWP minutes 

GRWP minutes 

GRWP minutes 

September 2011 

March 2012 

September 2012 

 

Page 140



APPENDIX 1 

 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Governance and Risk Working Party  
 

Thursday 18 July 2013 
 
 

In attendance:  
 
Councillor Pat Glasman (Chair) (WBC) 
 

Peter Wallach (Head of MPF) 
 

Councillor Ann McLachlan (WBC) 
 

Jim Molloy (WBC) 

Councillor Geoffrey Watt (WBC) Yvonne Caddock (Principal Pensions 
Officer) 
 

Phil Goodwin (Unison) 
 

Paddy Dowdall (Investment Manager) 

Councillor Harry Smith (WBC) 
 

Emma Jones (PA to Head of MPF) 

Councillor Adrian Jones (WBC) 
 

Peter Wallach (Head of MPF) 
 

Patrick McCarthy (Co-optee) 
 

 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Councillor Norman Keats (WBC) Councillor Cherry Povall (WBC) 

 
Councillor Tom Harney (WBC) 
 

Councillor George Davies  (WBC) 

Paul Wiggins (Unison) 
 

Councillor Mike Hornby (WBC) 
 

  
 
 
 
1.   Approval of Minutes  
 
Minutes of G&RWP, dated Wednesday 30 January 2013 were approved.  It was noted 
Councillor Geoffrey Watt (GW) was not included in the apologies. 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Pat Glasman declared an interest as a beneficiary of the Fund. 
 
Councillor Geoffrey Watt declared an interest by reason of a relative being a beneficiary of 
the Fund.  

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 167

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 22

Page 169

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 172

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 23

Page 173

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 GRANT  THORNTON - ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT
	4 DRAFT  ANNUAL REPORT
	5 FUND ACCOUNTS 2012/13
	6 LGPS UPDATE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	7 FUTURE STRUCTURE OF THE LGPS
	Apendix

	8 TACTICAL ASSET  ALLOCATION
	9 IT COSTS 2014 REFORM
	10 ANNUAL EMPLOYERS CONFERENCE
	11 LGPS FUNDAMENTALS TRAINING
	Appendix 1

	12 LAPFF CONFERENCE
	13 INFRASTRUCTURE & PRIVATE EQUITY SEMINAR
	14 NAPF CONFERENCE
	Appendix 1

	15 AMEY SERVICES
	16 TUNSGATE SQUARE TENDER
	17 GRWP MINUTES 18 JULY 2013
	19 TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION EXEMPT APPENDICES
	Exempt Appendix 2

	20 IT COSTS 2014 REFORM EXEMPT APPENDIX
	21 AMEY SERVICES EXEMPT APPENDIX
	22 TUNSGATE SQUARE TENDER EXEMPT  APPENDIX
	23 GRWP MINUTES EXEMPT APPENDIX

